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Weakness in any of the industries in which our customers operate, as well as the cyclical nature of our customers’
businesses generally, could materially reduce our revenues, cash flows and profitability. The mining and construction
equipment and other diversified industrial industries to which we sell our products are, to varying degrees, cyclical and
tend to decline in response to overall declines in industrial production. Margins in those industries are highly sensitive to
demand cycles, and our customers (or our customers’ customers) in those industries historically have tended to delay
large capital purchases and projects, including expensive maintenance and upgrades, during economic downturns. As a
result, our business is also cyclical, and the demand for our products by these customers depends, in part, on overall
levels of industrial production, general economic conditions, and business confidence levels. Many of our customers have
historically experienced periodic downturns, which often have had a negative effect on demand for our products. Future
downward economic cycles or customer downturns could reduce sales of our products resulting in reductions in our
revenues, cash flows and profitability. Future reductions or changes in U. S. government spending could negatively affect
our business. In fiscal 2025, approximately 3 % of our net sales were made directly, and we estimate that approximately
an additional 9 % of our net sales were made indirectly, to the U. S. government to support military or other government
projects. Our failure (or the failure of our customers that are prime contractors to the government) to obtain new
government contracts, the cancellation of government contracts relating to our products, or reductions in federal budget
appropriations for programs in which our products are used could materially reduce our revenues, cash flows and
profitability. A reduction in federal budget appropriations relating to our products could result from a shift in
government defense spending to other programs in which we are not involved or a reduction in U. S. government
defense spending generally (due to budget reduction initiatives or a shift in government spending priorities). Fluctuating
supply and costs of subcomponents, raw materials and energy resources could materially reduce our revenues, cash
flows and profitability. Our business is dependent on the availability and costs of subcomponents, raw materials,
particularly steel (generally in the form of stainless and chrome steel, which are commodity steel products), and energy
resources. The availability and prices of subcomponents, raw materials and energy resources may be subject to change
due to, among other things, new laws or regulations, economic inflation, suppliers’ allocations to other purchasers,
interruptions in production or deliveries by suppliers and changes in exchange rates and supplier costs and profit
expectations. Although we currently maintain alternative supply sources, our business is subject to the risk of price
fluctuations and periodic delays in the delivery of certain subcomponents or raw materials. Disruptions in the supply of
subcomponents, raw materials or energy resources could temporarily impair our ability to manufacture our products
for our customers or require us to pay higher prices in order to obtain these items from other sources, which could
thereby affect our net sales and profitability. Where our customer contracts permit us to do so, we seek to pass through a
significant portion of our additional costs to our customers through steel surcharges or price increases. However, many
of our contracts are fixed- price contracts under which we are not able to pass these additional costs on to our customers.
Even where we are able to pass these steel surcharges or price increases to our customers, there may be a lag of several
months between the time we experience a cost increase and the time we are able to implement surcharges or price
increases, particularly for orders already in our backlog. Competitive pressures and the terms of certain of our long-
term contracts may require us to absorb at least part of these cost increases. As a result, our gross margin percentage
could decline. We cannot provide assurances that we will be able to continue to pass these additional costs on to our
customers at all or on a timely basis or that our customers will not seek alternative sources of supply if there are
significant or prolonged increases in the price of subcomponents or other raw materials or energy resources. Changes to
and uncertainty in U. S. and international trade policy, including import tariffs imposed by the U. S. and other
countries, and the resulting consequences, could adversely affect our revenue and profit margin. In early 2025, the
United States imposed tariffs on a vast range of imported goods, including steel and other raw materials needed in our
U. S. manufacturing operations, as part of ongoing trade actions against the People’ s Republic of China and most other
foreign countries. The changes in U. S. trade policy have resulted in multiple other countries implementing retaliatory
tariffs and other responsive trade policies that apply to our U. S.- manufactured products sold in their markets. The
situation is very fluid at this time, and subject to rapid change as the U. S. increases, decreases, suspends or reinstates
tariffs against various countries and products and those countries respond. The tariffs and retaliatory tariffs are driving
escalating global trade conflicts which have led to, and may continue to lead to, inflationary pressures and uncertainty,
which could impact our operations. Specifically, U. S.- imposed tariffs increase our cost to import raw materials and
component parts from foreign sources (including our foreign operations) which will decrease our profitability to the
extent that we are unable to pass the increased cost on to our customers. Any import tariffs imposed on our U. S.-
manufactured products by other countries in response to U. S. trade policies will cause those products to be more
expensive in those countries, which may reduce our sales in those countries, thereby adversely affecting our revenue,
cash flow and profitability. In addition, any tariff- driven reduction in sales of our customers’ products into which our
products are integrated will correspondingly reduce the demand for our products, thereby adversely affecting our
revenue, profitability and cash flow. While we have not experienced a material impact on our business to date, no
assurance can be given that will continue to be the case. We are continuing to evaluate the trade situation as it evolves



and we are assessing mitigation strategies, including supply chain adjustments and pricing actions. We believe the
majority of our imports from Mexico are compliant with the United States- Mexico- Canada Agreement (“ USMCA )
and are currently exempt from tariffs upon importing into the United States. The ultimate impact of tariffs on our
operations and financial results is currently uncertain and will depend on the scope, duration, and potential expansion of
the measures implemented. Some of our products and operations are subject to certain approvals and government
regulations and the loss of such approvals, or our failure to comply with such regulations, could materially reduce our
revenues, cash flows and profitability. Essential to servicing the aerospace market is the ability to obtain product
approvals. We have a substantial number of product approvals, which enable us to provide products used in virtually all
domestic aircraft platforms presently in production or operation. Product approvals are typically issued by the FAA to
designated OEMs who are Production Approval Holders of FAA- approved aircraft. These Production Approval
Holders provide quality control oversight and generally limit the number of suppliers directly servicing the commercial
aerospace market. Regulations enacted by the FAA provide for an independent process (the PMA process) that enables
suppliers who currently sell their products to the Production Approval Holders to also sell products to the aftermarket.
Our foreign sales may be subject to similar approvals or U. S. export control restrictions. We cannot assure you that we
will not lose approvals for our aerospace products in the future. The loss or suspension of product approvals could result
in lost sales and materially reduce our revenues, cash flows and profitability. The repair and overhaul of aircraft parts and
accessories throughout the world is highly regulated by government agencies, including the FAA. Our repair and overhaul
operations are subject to certification pursuant to regulations established by the FAA and foreign government agencies, with
regulations varying from country to country, although compliance with FAA requirements generally satisfies regulatory
requirements in other countries. Our failure to comply with these regulations, or our compliance with new and more stringent
government regulations, if enacted, could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
As a U. S. government contractor, we are subject to various procurement and other laws, regulations and contract terms
applicable to our industry, including the FAR, the DFARS, the Truth in Negotiations Act, the False Claims Act, the
Procurement Integrity Act, the International Traffic in Arms Regulations promulgated under the Arms Export Control Act, the
Close the Contractor Fraud Loophole Act, the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, and CAS, and we could be adversely affected by
any negative finding by the U. S. government as to our compliance with them, including suspension or debarment from future
government contracting. The retirement of commercial aircraft could reduce our revenues, cash flows and profitability. We sell
replacement parts used in the repair and overhaul of jet engine and aircraft components, as well as provide such repair and
overhaul services ourselves. As aircraft or engines for which we offer replacement parts or repair and overhaul services are
retired, demand for these parts and services could decline and could reduce our revenue, cash flows and profitability. Risks
associated with utilizing information technology systems could adversely affect our operations. We rely upon our information
technology (“ IT ”) systems to process, transmit and store electronic information to manage and operate our business. Further, in
the ordinary course of business we store sensitive data, including intellectual property, on our networks. The secure maintenance
and transmission of this information is critical to our business operations. We may face cyber events and other IT security
threats, including malware, ransomware, phishing and other intrusions, to our IT infrastructure, attempts to gain unauthorized
access to proprietary, classified or confidential information, and threats to the physical security of our IT systems. Asa U. S.
government contractor, our risk of cyber events may be greater than the risk faced by other companies that are not government
contractors. In addition to security threats, our IT systems may also be subject to network, software or hardware failures. The
unavailability of our IT systems, the failure of these systems to perform as anticipated, or any significant breach of data security
could cause loss of data, disrupt our operations, require significant management attention and resources, subject us to liability to
third parties or regulatory actions or contract termination, and negatively impact our reputation among our customers and the
public, which could have a negative impact on our financial and competitive position, results of operations and liquidity. In
addition, our business with our customers and vendors could be impacted by cyber events on their IT systems. To address the
risk to our IT systems and data, we maintain an IT security program designed to resist cyber events and to mitigate the damage
from successful events. Refer to Part I, Item 1C of this Annual Report for details regarding our data protection and cybersecurity
risk management program. Work stoppages and other labor problems could materially reduce our ability to operate our business.
We currently have three collective bargaining agreements covering employees at our Plymouth, Indiana, Fairfield, Connecticut
and West Trenton, New Jersey facilities, representing approximately 7 % of our U. S.- based hourly employees as of March 36
29 ,2024-2025 . While we believe our relations with our employees are satisfactory, the inability to satisfactorily negotiate and
enter into new collective bargaining agreements upon expiration, or a lengthy strike or other work stoppage at any of our
facilities, particularly at some of our larger facilities, could materially reduce our ability to operate our business. In addition, any
attempt by our employees not currently represented by a union to join a union could result in additional expenses, including with
respect to wages, benefits and pension obligations. In addition, work stoppages at one or more of our customers or suppliers
(including suppliers of transportation services), many of which have large unionized workforces, could also cause disruptions to
our business that we cannot control, and these disruptions could materially reduce our revenues, cash flows and profitability.
Unexpected equipment failures or catastrophic events could increase our costs and reduce our sales due to production
curtailments or shutdowns. Our manufacturing processes are dependent upon critical pieces of turning, milling, grinding, and
electrical equipment, and this equipment could, on occasion, be out of service as a result of unanticipated failures. In addition to
equipment failures, our facilities are also subject to the risk of catastrophic loss due to unanticipated events such as fires,
explosions, earthquakes or violent weather conditions. In the future, we could experience material plant shutdowns or periods of
reduced production as a result of these types of equipment failures or catastrophes. Interruptions in production capabilities
would inevitably increase our production costs and reduce revenues, cash flows and profitability for the affected period. We
may not be able to continue to make the acquisitions necessary for us to realize our growth strategy. The acquisition of



businesses that complement or expand our operations is an important element of our business strategy. We frequently engage in
evaluations of potential acquisitions and negotiations for possible acquisitions, some of which, if consummated, could be
significant to us. We cannot assure you that we will be successful in identifying attractive acquisition candidates or completing
acquisitions on favorable terms in the future. Our inability to acquire businesses, or to operate them profitably once acquired,
could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial position, cash flow and growth. Our ability to realize anticipated
benefits and synergies from our acquisitions could be affected by a number of factors, including: the need for greater than
expected cash or other financial resources or management time in order to implement or integrate acquisitions; increases in other
expenses related to an acquisition, including restructuring and other exit costs; the timing and impact of purchase accounting
adjustments; difficulties in employee or management integration, including labor disruptions or disputes; and unanticipated
liabilities associated with acquired businesses. Any potential cost- saving opportunities may take several quarters following an
acquisition to implement, and any results of these actions may not be realized for several quarters thereafter, if at all. Businesses
that we acquire may have liabilities for which we are liable. In order to complete an acquisition, it may be necessary for us to
assume the liabilities of the acquired business. These liabilities may be known at the time of the acquisition, but could be
underestimated by us, or they may not be known to us until after the acquisition. In the case of an acquisition in which we do not
assume all the liabilities of the acquired business, we typically obtain indemnification from the seller against the unassumed
liabilities, although no assurance can be given that such indemnification will be sufficient in amount, scope or duration to fully
offset the risk of the unassumed liabilities. Liabilities of acquired businesses that ultimately are borne by us (either because we
assume them or our indemnification right proves to be insufficient or unenforceable) could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition or results of operations. In addition, after we complete an acquisition we may learn of other matters
that adversely affect us, such as issues relating to the acquired business’ s compliance with applicable laws, or issues relating to
its supply chain, customer relationships or order demand. Goodwill and indefinite- lived intangibles comprise a significant
portion of our total assets, and if we determine that goodwill and indefinite- lived intangibles have become impaired in the
future, our results of operations and financial condition in such years may be materially and adversely affected. Goodwill
represents the excess of cost over the fair market value of net assets acquired in business combinations. Indefinite- lived
intangibles represent repair station certifications obtained in business combinations and assumed to have indefinite lives. As of
March 36-29 , 2624-2025 , we had $ 1, 874-872 . 9-2 of goodwill and $ 24. 3 of indefinite- lived intangibles, representing
approximately 4+40 % of our total assets. We review goodwill and indefinite- lived intangibles at least annually for impairment
and any excess in carrying value over the estimated fair value is charged to the results of operations. Our estimates of fair value
are based on assumptions about the future operating cash flows, growth rates, discount rates applied to these cash flows, and
current market estimates of value. If we are required to record a charge to earnings because of an impairment of goodwill or
indefinite- lived intangibles, our results of operations and financial condition could be materially and adversely affected. We
depend heavily on our senior management and other key personnel, the loss of whom could materially affect our financial
performance and prospects. Our business is managed by a number of key personnel, including our CEO Dr. Michael J. Hartnett.
Our future success will depend on, among other things, our ability to retain the services of these personnel and to hire their
successors and other highly qualified employees at all levels. Our international operations are subject to risks inherent in such
activities. We have operations in Australia, England, Canada, France, Germany, India, Mexico, the Peoples Republic of China,
Poland and Switzerland. Of our 54 facilities in 11 countries, +49-20 are located outside the U. S., including +8-12 manufacturing
facilities in four countries. In ﬁscal %9%4—2025 approxrmately 211 % of our net sales were generated by our 1nternat10na1
operations —We a Sprop y SV € e 0
-}ﬂel-udiﬂg—t-hfeugh—aeqtﬂsﬁleﬁs— Our forergn operatlons are subject to the rrsks 1nherent in such actrvrtres such as: currency
devaluations, logistical and communication challenges, costs of complying with a variety of foreign laws and regulations, greater
difficulties in protecting and maintaining our rights to intellectual property, difficulty in staffing and managing geographically
diverse operations, acts of terrorism or war or other acts that may cause social disruption which are difficult to quantify or
predict, and general economic conditions in these foreign markets. Our international operations may be negatively impacted by
changes in government policies, such as changes in laws and regulations, restrictions on imports and exports, sources of supply,
duties or tariffs, the introduction of measures to control inflation, and changes in the rate or method of taxation. To date we have
not experienced significant difficulties with the foregoing risks associated with our international operations. Currency translation
risks may have a material impact on our results of operations. The majority of our foreign operations utilize the local currency as
their functional currency. Foreign currency transaction gains and losses are included in earnings. Foreign currency transaction
exposure arises primarily from the transfer of foreign currency from one subsidiary to another within the group and to foreign
currency- denominated trade receivables. Unrealized currency translation gains and losses are recorded on the balance sheet
upon translation of the foreign operations’ functional currency to the reporting currency. Because our financial statements are
denominated in U. S. dollars, changes in currency exchange rates between the U. S. dollar and the currencies used by our
international operations have had, and will continue to have, an impact on our earnings. We periodically enter into derivative
financial instruments such as forward-exehange-eontraets-cross currency swaps to reduce the effect of fluctuations in exchange
rates on eertainr-third—party-sales-transactions and account balances denominated in non- functional currencies. Currency
fluctuations may affect our financial performance in the future and we cannot predict the impact of future exchange rate
fluctuations on our results of operations. See Part II, Item 7A. “ Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk —
Foreign Currency Exchange Rates ” of this Annual Report on Form 10- K. We may incur material losses for product liability
and recall- related claims. We are subject to a risk of product and recall- related liability in the event that the failure, use or
misuse of any of our products results in personal injury, death or property damage or our products do not conform to our
customers’ specifications. In particular, our products are installed in a number of types of vehicle fleets, including airplanes,
helicopters, trains, automobiles, heavy trucks and farm equipment, many of which may be subject to government- ordered




recalls as well as voluntary recalls by the manufacturer. If one of our products is found to be defective, causes a fleet to be
disabled or otherwise results in a product recall, significant claims may be brought against us. We currently maintain insurance
coverage for product liability claims but not for recall- related claims. We cannot assure you that product liability claims, if
made, would not exceed our insurance coverage limits. Claims that are not covered by insurance, or that exceed insurance
coverage limits, could result in material losses. Claims that are covered by insurance could result in increased future insurance
costs. Our intellectual property and proprietary information are valuable, and any inability to protect them could adversely affect
our business and results of operations; in addition, we may be subject to infringement claims by third parties. Our ability to
compete effectively is dependent upon our ability to protect and preserve the intellectual property and proprietary information
owned, licensed or otherwise used by us. We have numerous U. S. and foreign trademark registrations and patents. We also have
U. S. and foreign trademark and patent applications pending. We cannot assure you that our pending trademark and patent
applications will result in trademark registrations and issued patents, and our failure to secure rights under these applications
may limit our ability to protect the intellectual property rights that these applications were intended to cover. Although we have
attempted to protect our intellectual property and proprietary information both in the United States and in foreign countries
through a combination of patent, trademark, copyright and trade secret protection, and non- disclosure agreements, these steps
may be insufficient to prevent unauthorized use of our intellectual property and proprietary information, particularly in foreign
countries where the protection available for such intellectual property and proprietary information may be limited. We cannot
assure you that any of our intellectual property rights will not be infringed upon or that our trade secrets will not be
misappropriated or otherwise become known to or independently developed by competitors. We may not have adequate
remedies available for any such infringement or other unauthorized use. We cannot assure you that any infringement claims
asserted by us will not result in our intellectual property being challenged or invalidated, that our intellectual property will be
held to be of adequate scope to protect our business, or that we will be able to deter current and former employees, contractors or
other parties from breaching confidentiality obligations and misappropriating trade secrets. We could become subject to
litigation claiming that our intellectual property or proprietary information infringes the rights of a third party. In that event, we
could incur substantial defense costs and, if such litigation is successful, we could be required to pay the claimant damages for
our past use of such intellectual property or proprietary information, and we could either be required to pay royalties for our use
of it in the future or be prohibited from using it in the future. Our inability to use our intellectual property and proprietary
information on a cost- effective basis in the future could have a material adverse effect on our revenue, cash flow and
profitability. See Part I, Item 1. “ Business — Intellectual Property * of this Annual Report on Form 10- K. Cancellation of
orders in our backlog could negatively 1mpact our revenues, cash ﬂows and proﬁtablhty As of March 36-29 , %9%4—2025 we
had an order backlog of $ 824-940 . 7 541 : b
However, orders included in our backlog may be subject to cancellation, delay or other modlﬁcatlons by our custorners and we
cannot assure you that these orders will ultimately be fulfilled. Quarterly performance can be affected by the timing of
government product inspections and approvals. A portion of our revenue is associated with contracts with the U. S. government
that require onsite inspection and approval of the products by government personnel before we may ship the products, and we
have no control over the timing of those inspections and approvals. If products scheduled for delivery in one quarter are not
inspected or approved until the following quarter, the delay would adversely affect our sales and profitability for the quarter in
which the shipments were scheduled. We incurred substantial debt in order to complete the Dodge acquisition, which could
constrain our business and exposes us to the risk of defaults under our debt instruments. In fiscal 2022, we incurred $ 1, 800. 0
of total debt to finance the Dodge acquisition. As of March 36-29 , 2024-2025 , our total debt was $ 920. 1 ;3494+9-. This debt
could or will have important consequences, including, but not limited to: e this debt requires us to make significant interest and
principal payments in the future; @ a substantial portion of our cash flow from operations will be used to repay the principal and
interest on our debt, thereby reducing the funds available to us for other purposes including for strategic acquisitions, working
capital, capital expenditures, and general corporate purposes; ® our flexibility in planning for and reacting to changes in our
business, the competitive landscape and the markets in which we operate may be limited; and ® we may be placed at a
competitive disadvantage relative to other companies in our industry with less debt or comparable debt on more favorable terms.
Our ability to make scheduled payments on and to refinance our indebtedness depends on and is subject to our financial and
operating performance and no assurance can be given that our business will generate sufficient cash flow to service our debt.
Additionally, our ability to comply with the financial and other covenants contained in our debt instruments could be affected
by, among other things, changes in our results of operations, the incurrence of additional indebtedness, the pricing of our
products, our success at implementing cost reduction initiatives, our ability to successfully implement our overall business
strategy, or changes in industry- specific or general economic conditions which are beyond our control. The breach of any of
these covenants could result in a default or event of default under our debt instruments, which, if not cured or waived, could
result in our being required to repay these borrowings before their due date. If we are forced to refinance these borrowings on
less favorable terms or cannot refinance these borrowings, our prospects, business, financial condition, results of operations and
cash flows could be materially and adversely affected and could cause us to become bankrupt or otherwise insolvent. In
addition, these covenants may restrict our ability to engage in transactions that we believe would otherwise be in the best
interests of our business and stockholders. Increases in interest rates would increase the cost of servicing our term loan and could
reduce our profitability. As of March 36-29 , 2624-2025 , $ 486-100 . 0 of our term loan was subject to a fixed- rate interest swap
but the remaining $ 2#5-313 . 0 balance of the term loan bears interest at a variable rate. Future increases in interest rates would
increase the cost of servicing the portion of the term loan not subject to a swap, which could materially reduce our profitability
and cash flows. Risk Factors Related to our Capital Stock Provisions in our charter documents may prevent or hinder efforts to
acquire a controlling interest in us. Provisions of our certificate of incorporation and bylaws may discourage, delay or prevent a
merger, acquisition or other change in control that stockholders may consider favorable, including transactions that might benefit




our stockholders or in which our stockholders might otherwise receive a premium for their shares. These provisions may also
prevent or frustrate attempts by our stockholders to replace or remove our management. Pursuant to our charter documents, our
Board of Directors (the “ Board ) consists of eight-nine members serving staggered three- year terms and divided into three
classes. As a result, two annual meetings are required to change a majority of the Board members. Our certificate of
incorporation authorizes the issuance of 10, 000, 000 shares of preferred stock, with such designations, rights and preferences as
may be determined from time to time by the Board, without stockholder approval. We utilized this authorization to issue 4, 600,
000 shares of 5. 00 % Series A Mandatory Convertlble Preferred Stock (LMGP-S—)—ln ﬁical 2022 —Certainterms-, which
converted into shares of v our expenstve-common stock in
October 2024 . In the future the Board could authorrze the issuance of some or all of the 5;-400,-660remaining-authorized
shares of preferred stock with rights, preferences and privileges thatranlceqaatty-with-the MERS;or-that could have the effect of
discouraging, delaying or preventing a change in control of us, or that could impede our stockholders’ ability to approve a
transaction they consider in their best interests. Although we have no present intention to issue any additional preferred stock, no
assurance can be given that we will not do so in the future. Holders of our common stock do not have preemptive rights to
subscribe for a pro rata portion of preferred stock or any other capital stock that we may 1§§ue in the future. We do not expect to

pay cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future a
wartous-Hmitations-. Except for a § 2. 00 per common share special dividend pald in 2014 we have ﬁet—never paid any cash
dividends on our common stock and we do not expect to pay cash dividends on the common stock in the foreseeable future.
Instead, we plan to apply earnings and excess cash, if any, to the service of our debt, the-payment-ofquarterly-dividends-on-the
MERS;-and the expansion and development of our business (although the Company does have a $ 100. 0 common stock
repurchase plan that we have never executed under) . Thus, any return on an 1nve§tment 1n our common stock would depend
qolely on an 1ncrea§e 1f any, in the market value of the common stock - :

agfeemeﬂt—wrt-h—\VeHs—F&fge— ITEM lB UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS None ITEM IC CYBERSECURITY
Cybersecurity Risk Management and Governance In response to the increasing threat of continuously evolving cybersecurity
risks, we continue to invest in our information technology and operational technology cybersecurity processes. We maintain a
data protection and cybersecurity risk management program based upon the National Institute of Standards and Technology (*
NIST ) Cybersecurity framework to assess, identify and manage cybersecurity risks. As part of this program, we maintain
defensive network perimeter safeguards, internal mitigation and control features, continuous system and network monitoring,
and contingency data protection. The Company ensures regular data and system backups through planned schedules. We utilize
local backups for quick recovery and off- site, off- line and physical backups to safeguard against disasters. Our cybersecurity
program includes steps for assessing the severity of a cybersecurity threat, identifying the source of a cybersecurity threat
including whether the cybersecurity threat is associated with a third- party service provider, implementing cybersecurity testing,
detection, response, prevention and mitigation strategies. We also have a notification process for real- time escalation of material
cyber incidents by members of our internal cybersecurity team to senior management, including our Chief Executive Officer,
Chief Operating Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Corporate Controller, General Counsel and the Audit Committee of the Board
of Directors. The Company’ s information security team also engages third- party security consultants for penetration testing,
training and system enhancements. Our Director of Information Technology is responsible for leading global cybersecurity risk
reduction efforts and compliance. The Audit Committee is responsible for oversight of our risk management with respect to
information technology operations and cybersecurity and oversees risk management in the area of data privacy. As part of this
process, the Audit Committee oversees the data protection and cybersecurity risk management program, which includes
reviewing management’ s risk assessments and the steps management has taken to monitor or mitigate our cybersecurity risk
exposure. Management regularly provides data protection and cybersecurity reports to the Audit Committee, which include
updates on cybersecurity initiatives, cybersecurity metrics and threat landscape. Despite our efforts with respect to information
technology operations, cybersecurity and data privacy, we have been, and may continue to be, impacted by breaches in data
security and lapses in data privacy, which occur from time to time. During fiscal year 2024-2025 , the Company did not
experience any cybersecurity incidents that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect the Company,
including its business strategy, results of operations , cash flow or financial condition. ITEM 2. PROPERTIES Our principal

executive office is eonsists-ofapproximately70;-600-squarefeet-located at One Tribology Center, Oxford, Connecticut, which
we own . Our randeur-Dodge Indu%trlal %ubqldlary has a-ppfexrmate}y%—eee—sqﬂ&fe—feet—ef—ofﬁce %pace in Srmp%onvﬂle

South Carohna which we lease -




own or lease 38 manufacturing facilities approximately239;-066-square-feet-in five countries. 26 of those manufacturing
facilities are located in three—- the U. S., one is located in Poland, eight are located in Mexico, two are located in
Sw1tzerland and one is located in Chlna We own or lease ten dlsn ibution centers loeated-in-Californta;-South-Carolina;-and
W vera attons-in the United States, Canada, France, €hina-Mexico ,
Germany , lndla the Unlted Klngdom and Austraha We also utilize third party logistics’ firms located strategically around
the world to supplement distribution of our products. We believe that as the term of each of our leased facilities expires we will
be able to either secure a renewal or enter into a lease for an alternate location on market terms. We believe that our existing
facilities and equipment are generally in good condition, are well maintained and adequate to carry on our current operations.
We also believe that our existing manufacturing facilities have sufficient capacity to meet increased customer demand. ITEM 3.
LEGAL PROCEEDINGS In OaMareh-9;:-2022 and Mareh245-2023, the Company received civil investigative demands from
the United States Department of Justice pursuant to the False Claims Act, 31 U. S. C. § 3733 (the “ FCA ™). The investigation
concerns allegations that the Company submitted false claims in connection with (i) certifying that the Company’ s employees
were eligible for unemployment insurance benefits and pandemic relief and worked reduced hours and (ii) received grant
proceeds in violation of the FCA. The Company is cooperating with the investigation. The As-the-investigation is ongoing and
#rits-earky-stagessit is not possible to determine whether the investigation will have a material adverse effect, if any, on the
Company. Besides the matter described in the previous paragraph, from time to time we are involved in litigation that arises in
the ordinary course of business, but we do not believe that any such litigation in which we are currently involved, either
individually or in the aggregate, is likely to have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, operating results,
cash flow or prospects. ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES Not applicable. PART II ITEM 5. MARKET FOR
REGISTRANT’ S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY
SECURITIES Price Range of Our Common Stock and-Rreferred-Steel=Our common stock is quoted on the New York Stock
Exchange under the symbol “ RBC. ” As of May +8-9 , 2824-2025 , there was one holder of record of our common stock. The
following table shows the high and low sales prices of our common stock during the periods indicated: Fiscal 2025 Fiscal 2024
Fiseal 2023-High Low High Low First Quarter $ 299. 25 § 241. 43 $ 236. 95 § 195. 18 $262-93-$452-90-Sccond Quarter 309.
01 260. 53 253. 00 203. 65 264-941+792+Third Quarter 346. 78 272. 50 288. 16 214. 14 256-29-262—13-Fourth Quarter 372.
83 290. 56 285. 79 240. 36 254—56-204—6FThe last reported sale price of our common stock on the New York Stock Exchange
on May +6-9 , 2024-2025 was $ 2794349 . 56-25 per share. Fhe- MERS{+-Dividends Except for a $ 2 . ¢-00 per common share
special dividend paid in 2014 ., we have never paid any cash dividends on our common eutstanding-preferred-stock s
gaoted-and we do not expect to pay cash dividends on the common New—Yeotk-Stoek-stock in Exehange-underthesymbet=
-RB-GP%*S-ef—May—l-G—Z-%t-hefe——— the foreseeable future was-one-holderofreeord-ofthe MEPS- Issuer Purchases The
stable-shov h W ees-of the- MEPS-Equity Securities Our repurchases of shares of our
common stock durlng the peﬂeds—mdieated-fourth quarter of ﬁscal 2025 are as follows Period Total number of shares

-1—2—1—2—1—1-9H7—’Phe—las-t—repefted—sa-l&pr1ce paid efthe v

34-per share —Issuer-(2) Number of shares Pﬂfehases-purchased as part of Equtty—Seeuﬂ&es—the publlcly announced
program (3) Approximate dollar value of shares still available to be purchased under the program (in millions) (3) 12 /
29/2024-01/25/202516 $297.81 —$100.001/26/2025—02/22/2025 2,226 361. 38 — 100. 0 02 /23 /2025 -03 /
29/2025 180 353.20 — $ 100. 0 Total 2, 422 $ 360. 35 — (1) Consists of shares of RBC restricted stock repurchased
from employees upon the vesting of those shares in order to fund the employees’ tax withholding obligation. These
repurchased shares were never in the open market. (2) The closing price for our stock on the trading day immediately
preceding the restricted stock vesting date. (3) In 2019, our Board of Directors authonzed us to repurchase up to $ 100. 0 of
our common stock from time to time e#-in the open market ;41 e
transaettons;in compliance with SEC Rule 10b- 18 depending on market Condmons alternatwe uses of capltal and other
relevant factors. Purchases may be commenced, suspended, or discontinued at any time without prior notice. The Fotal-share
repurehases— repurchase underthe2649-plan does not have an expiration date. As of March 29, 2025, the Company has
not repurchased any shares pursuant to th1s program Recent Sales of Unreglstered Securltles eluﬂng—Durlng the fourth

qrarterof-fiseal2024-, we did not issue any securities eeﬁarﬁeﬁ—steelethat was—were not reglstered under the Securmes Act of
1933. Equity Compensation Plans Information regarding equity compensation plans required to be disclosed pursuant to this
Item is included in Part II, Item 8, Note 4716 of this Annual Report on Form 10- K. Performance Graph The following graph
shows the total return to our stockholders compared to the Russell 3000 Index and the S & P 400 Industrials (Sector) (TR) over
the period from March 36-28 , 2045-2020 to March 38-29 , 2824-2025 . Because of the diversity of our markets and products, we
do not believe that a combination of peer issuers can be selected on an industry or line- of- business basis to provide a
meaningful basis for comparing shareholder return. Accordingly, the Russell 3000 Index, which is comprised of issuers with
generally similar market capitalizations to that of the Company, is included in the graph as permitted by applicable regulations.
Each line on the graph assumes that $ 100 was invested in our common stock or in the respective indices on March 36-28 , 2649
2020 based on the closing price on that date. The graph then presents the value of these investments, assuming reinvestment of
dividends, through the close of trading on March 36-29 , 2024-2025 . Mareh30,2049-March 28, 2020 April 3, 2021 April 2,
2022 April 1, 2023 March 30, 2024 March 29, 2025 RBC Bearings Incorporated $ 100. 00 $ 86-180 . 56-$1+55-8+$153—-13 $



177 . 77 S +82-211 . 98-55 § 242245 . 54-71 $ 295. 89 Russell 3000 Index 100. 00 89-167 . 43349-27 185 . 58166 66 168 . 63
45499 218 . 3495-50 233 . 39-21 S & P 400 Industrials (Sector) (TR) 100. 00 78-195 . 70 98+54--57145924165-6422420
201 . 62 209. 71 283. 87 263. 02 The cumulative total return shown on the stock performance graph indicates historical results
only and may not be indicative of future results. ITEM 6. [ RESERVED ] Not applicable. ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’ S
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS The financial and
business analysis below provides information that we believe is relevant to an assessment and understanding of our consolidated
financial position, results of operations and cash flows. This financial and business analysis should be read in conjunction with
the consolidated financial statements and related notes. All references to *“ Notes * in this Item 7 refer to the *“ Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements ” included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10- K. The following discussion contains
statements reflecting our views about our future performance that constitute “ forward- looking statements ”” within the meaning
of the safe harbor provisions of the U. S. Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. See the information provided in Part
I, Item 1A. “ Risk Factors ” of this Annual Report on Form 10- K under the heading “ Cautionary Statement as to Forward-
Looking Information. ” General We are a well- known international manufacturer of highly engineered precision bearings,
components and essential systems for the aerospace, defense and industrial ;-defense-and-aerespaee-industries. Our precision
solutions are integral to the manufacture and operation of most machines and mechanical systems, reduce wear to moving parts,
facilitate proper power transmission, and reduce damage and energy loss caused by friction. While we manufacture products in
all major bearing categories, we focus primarily on the higher end of the bearing market where we believe our value- added
manufacturing and engineering capabilities enable us to differentiate ourselves from our competitors and enhance profitability.
We believe our unique expertise has enabled us to garner leading positions in many of the product markets in which we
primarily compete. With 54 facilities in 11 countries, of which 38 are manufacturing facilities, we have been able to
significantly broaden our end markets, products, customer base and geographic reach. We have a fiscal year consisting of 52 or
53 weeks, ending on the Saturday closest to March 31. Based on this policy, fiscal 2624-2025 had 52 weeks and fiscal 2623
2024 had 52 weeks. We currently operate under two reportable business segments — Aerospace / Defense and Industrial: e
Acrospace / Defense. This segment represents the end markets for the Company’ s highly engineered bearings and precision
components used in commercial aerospace, defense aerospace, and-defense marine and-, defense ground defense-vehicles,
missiles and guided munitions, and space and satellite applications. ® Industrial. This segment represents the end markets for
the Company’ s highly engineered bearings, gearings— gearing and precision components used in various industrial applications
including: pewer-transmission-construction, mining, forestry, energy, agricultural and other machinery : aggregate
eonstraetion; minthg-energy-and speetatized-equipment-cement handling; food and beverage manufacturing; grain, and
agricultural product handling; metals and mining material handling; chemicals, oil and gas production; warehousing
and loglstlcs, manufacturlng automatlon and qemlconductor pfedueﬁeﬂ—eqmpment mantfacturing-, power generation

e ; v rirtirg-; waste and teethelding-water management; rail and
transportatlon We use gross margln as the primary measurement to assess the financial performance of each reportable
segment. End market and channel sales within our segments are based on internal definitions and metrics considered by
management and are periodically reviewed and updated prospectively. For fiscal year 2024, we estimate approximately
$ 6. 9 of sales classified as industrial distribution for fiscal year 2024 would now be classified as industrial OEM. Fiscal
year 2024 was not recast to reflect this change . The markets for our products are cyclical, and we have endeavored to
mitigate this cyclicality by entering into single and sole- source relationships and long- term purchase agreements, through
diversification across multiple market segments within the Aerospace / Defense and Industrial segments, by increasing sales to
the aftermarket, and by focusing on developing highly customized solutions. Currently, our strategy is built around maintaining
our role as a leading manufacturer of highly engineered bearings and precision components through the following efforts: @
Developing innovative solutions. By leveraging our design and manufacturing expertise and our extensive customer
relationships, we continue to develop new products for markets in which there are substantial growth opportunities. ®
Expanding customer base and penetrating end markets. We continually seek opportunities to access new customers, geographic
locations and bearing platforms with existing products or profitable new product opportunities. ® Increasing aftermarket sales.
We believe that increasing our aftermarket sales of replacement parts will further enhance the continuity and predictability of
our revenues and enhance our profitability. Such sales include sales to third party distributors, and sales to OEMs for
replacement products and aftermarket services. We swH-can further increase the percentage of our revenues derived from the
replacement market by continuing to implement several initiatives. ® Pursuing selective acquisitions. The acquisition of
businesses that complement or expand our operations has been and continues to be an important element of our business
strategy. We believe that there will continue to be consolidation within the industry that may present us with acquisition
opportunities. We have demonstrated expertise in acquiring and integrating bearing and precision engineered component
manufacturers that have complementary products or distribution channels and have provided significant margin enhancement.
We have consistently increased the profitability of acquired businesses through a process of methods and systems improvement
coupled with the introduction of complementary and proprietary new products. Since 1992 we have completed 29 acquisitions,
which have broadened our end markets, products, customer base and geographic reach. Outlook For the fiscal year ended
March 29, 2025, 63. 8 % of our net sales were attributable to the Industrial segment while the Aerospace / Defense
segment contributed 36. 2 % of our net sales. Our net sales increased 6-4. 9 % year over year due to an increase of 14. 1 %
in Aerospace and Defense segment sales and a 0. 2 % increase in Industrial segment sales. Aerospace and Defense
segment sales increased 14. 1 % year over year. Commercial aerospace increased 13. 3 %, demonstrating the continued
recovery and early stages of a growth cycle. Defense sales, which represent approximately 32. 4 % of segment sales
during the year, were up 15. 9 % for the year. Our backlog in this market is significant and deliveries are expected to
continue to grow in the coming years. Industrial segment sales increase 0 . 2 % year over year , led by due-to-am-inerease-of




i ates-and-a 6-1 . 2-4 % increase in Industriat-segment-distribution and aftermarket
sales Aerespaee—and—Befense—segment—sa-}es—Sales inereased-26-to OEMs were down 2] —7’—1 % year over year —eenmefem-}

aefespaee—rnefeased—ZG—Zv% prlmarlly drlven by softness

t-he—yea-rheﬂiebaeldeg—rn this-end-the energy and semicon market—markets ﬂ—srgni-ﬁeant—&nd-del-weﬂes-afe—eaqaeeted—te-eeﬂtmﬂe
to-aceelerate-in-the-eoming-years-. For the fourth quarter of fiscal yearendedMareh36,2024-2025 . 64 approximately-66-. 71

% of our net sales were-was attrrbutable to the Industrral segment whr-}e—compared to approx1mately 35.9 % for the
Aerospace / Defense segment ot AP . S crarte .

Approxrnlately $486-191 . 85 of Industrral segment sales in the fourth quarter of ﬁscal 2624
2025 were to distribution and aftermarket compared to approximately $ +85-186 . 7-8 in the prior year while approximately $
84-88 . 5-9 were made directly to OEMs in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2024-2025 compared to approximately $ 86-84 . 9-5 in
the prior year. Net sales in the Aerospace / Defense segment increased $ 26-14. 9, or 10 . 6 ;e+4+6-—8-%, for the fourth quarter of
fiscal 2024-2025 compared to the same period last fiscal year. Commercial acrospace net sales , which consisted of $ 78-85 . 2-9
of OEM and $49-23 . 73 of distribution and aftermarket, increased by 42-11 . 8-6 % compared to the fourth quarter of fiscal
2623-2024 when OEM net sales were $ 68-78 . 8-2 and distribution and aftermarket net sales were $ +8-19 . 5-7 . This was
driven by a continuing recovery as build rates and orders eseatate-grew in the OEM markets— market and the-aftermarket
demand remalned strong beg-rns—te—prelﬁtp— Our defense markets net sales Wthh consrsted of $ 3«4—38 1 of OEM and $ 10.

compared to the fourth quarter of ﬁscal %92—3—2024 when OEM net sales were $ %8—34 2 and distr 1but10n and aftermarket net
sales were $6-10 . 3. The Company forecasts net sales to be approximately $ 435424 . 0 to $ 420-434 . 0 in the first quarter of
fiscal 20252026 , compared to $ 387406 . 43 in the first quarter of fiscal 2024-2025 , which represents a growth rate of 4. 4 %
to 6. 8 %. Our backlog as of March 29, 2025 was $ 940 7 compared —24%1—t0 8—$ 821 5 %—theefdeﬁbaekleg—as of March

—759—4—&3—0pr1-1—1—292—3— Thrs increase reﬂects Contrnued growth nlost notably in our Commercral aerospace and marine

defense end markets —Beg ed-We experrenced
solid operating cash flow generatron durrng ﬁscal %9%4—2025 (as discussed in the quurdrty and Caprtal Resources ” section
below). We believe that operating cash flows and available credit under our revolving bank credit facilities will provide adequate
resources to fund internal growth initiatives for the foreseeable future, including at least the next 12 months. As of March 36-29
,2024-2025 , we had cash and-eashequivalents-of $ 63-36 . 5-8 , of which, $ 25-23 . 9-7 was cash held by our foreign operations.
Sources of Revenue A contract with a customer exists when there is commitment and approval from both parties involved, the
rights of the parties are identified, payment terms are defined, the contract has commercial substance and collectability of
consideration is probable. The Company has determined that the contract with the customer is established when the customer
purchase order is accepted or acknowledged. Long- term agreements (“ LTAs ) are used by the Company and certain of its
customers to reduce their supply uncertainty for a period of time, typically multiple years. While these LTAs define commercial
terms including pricing, termination rights and other contractual requirements, they do not represent the contract with the
customer for revenue recognition purposes. Approximately 98 % of the Company’ s revenue was generated from the sale of
products to customers in the Industrial and Aerospace / Defense markets for each of the years ended March 29, 2025 and
March 30, 2024 and-AprH52623-. The remaining 2 % of the Company’ s revenue for each of the last two fiscal years was
derived from services performed for customers, which included repair and refurbishment work performed on customer-
controlled assets as well as design and test work. Refer to Note 2 for further discussion regarding the Company’ s revenue
policy. Cost of Sales Cost of sales includes employee compensation and benefits, raw materials, outside processing, depreciation
of manufacturing machinery and equipment, supplies and manufacturing overhead. Less than half of our factory costs,
depending on product mix, are attributable to raw materials, purchased components and outside processing. When we
experience raw material inflation, we attempt to offset these cost increases by changing our buying patterns, expanding our
vendor network and passing through price increases when possible. Although we experienced cost inflation on raw material,
labor and overhead for this fiscal year, we were able to mitigate it through pricing and strategic sourcing efforts. We monitor
gross margin performance through a process of monthly operation reviews with all our divisions. We develop new products to
target certain markets allied to our strategies by first understanding volume levels and product pricing and then constructing
manufacturing strategies to achieve defined margin objectives. We only pursue product lines where we believe that the
developed manufacturing process will yield the targeted margins. Management monitors gross margins of all product lines on a
monthly basis to determine which manufacturing processes or prices should be adjusted. Fiscal 2025 Compared to Fiscal 2024
Compared-toFiseal2023-Results of Operations (amounts in millions, except share and per share data) FY25 FY24 F¥23-§
Change % Change Net sales $ 1, 636.3 $ 1, 560. 3 $ 76 :;4693-$94+. 064 . 29 % Net income attributable to common
stockholders $ 233. 8 § 186. 9 $ 443-46 . 9 25 8-$43-. 0 1301 Net income per common share attributable to common
stockholders: Diluted $ 7. 70 $ 6. 41 $4-94-Weighted average common shares attributable to common stockholders: Diluted 30,
354, 470 29, 189, 056 29;-6725429-Net sales for the fiscal year ended March 36-29 , 2624-2025 increased $ 9476 . 0, or 64 . 2
9 %, fer-compared to fiscal 2024 eempared—te—ﬁsea-l—?&@%%— This increase t#irnetsates-was the result of ana 0. 2 % increase in
our Industrial segment, while net sales in our Aerospace / Defense segment increased 28-14 . 1 % year over year. Industrial
segment sales remain-very-experienced the streng-strongest contribution to growth ;-mestnetably-in the metals and mining,
warehousing energy-and generalindustriat-logistics, and food and beverage markets. Within Aerospace / Defense, total




commercial aerospace net sales increased 26-13 . 3 % and defense net sales increased 2415 . -9 % year over year. The
commercial derosp"lce increase reﬂects the contmued recovery in the market over the last year Fand-what-we-believets-the-start
oW G % d § years-. Net income attributable to
common stockholdms 1nc1€dsed by $ 46 43—1—te—$—1—86— 9to $ 233. 8 for flSCdl 2025 compared to fiscal 2024 eompared-. The
net income attributable to common stockholders of $ 233. 8 in fiscal 2023-2025 was impacted by $ 1. S of restructuring
and consolidation charges, $ 59. 8 of interest expense, $ 12. 4 of preferred stock dividends, and $ 65. 7 of income tax
expense . The net income attributable to common stockholders of § 186. 9 in fiscal 2024 was impacted by $ 3. 0 of restructuring
and COHSOlldatIOIl charges -rﬂeuﬁed- § 78. 7 of interest expense $23.00f prefened stock div 1dends ,and 3> 51.9 of'i income tax

-ineeme—ta*expeﬂse—(}loss Mcugm FY25 FY24 -F%L2-3—3> Chdnoe % Chdnoe GIOSS Mcugm $ 726 18 670 5 $ 694—55 6 8 $65-
3 7146-5-% Gross Margin % 44. 4 % 43. 0 %4+2-% Gross margin was 43-44 . -4 % of sales for fiscal 2024-2025 compared to
41443 . 2-0 % for the same period last year. Gross margin during-0of $ 670. 5 in fiscal 2024 included $ 0. 3 of inventory
ratlonallzqtlon costs assoudted with consollddtlon efforts at one of our fchllltISS 10C'lt€d in California. Gfess—mafg-m—rﬂ—ﬁsea-l-

-Settt-h—Gafe-l-l—na—The expansion in margin durm;c flSCdl %9%4—2025 reﬂects the combmdtlon of product mix, pricing and
contlnued cost eﬁlclenmes and synergles achleved throu,ﬂch integration —pfeduet—ﬁnarpﬂemg—&ﬂd-ﬂ&e—abﬁtw—te—ﬁmﬂf&m

Sellmg Geneml and Admlmstldtl\e FY25 FY24 -F%L2-3—3> Chdnoe % Chdnoe SG & A b 279.3 8 253 5 b 25 2%9—7—$€-3— 8 10. 4
2 % % of net sales 17. 1 % 16. 2 %45-6-% SG & A expenses increased by $ 23-25 . 8 to § 253-279 . 5-3 for fiscal 2025
compared to fiscal 2024 eempared-to-fiseal2023-. The increase in SG & A was primarily driven by personnel costs, [T costs
and other professional fees. Other, Net FY25 FY24 F¥23-§ Change % Change Other, net $ 76.9 $ 74. 8 $ 822 . 1 2 $7F 338
9% % of net sales 4. T % 4. 8 %56 Other operating expenses for fiscal 2024-2025 totaled $ 76. 9 compared to $ 74. &
eompared-to-$-827-for fiscal 2623-2024 . For fiscal 2024-2025 . other operating costs consisted primarily of $ 28-71 . 4-8 of
amortization expense, $ 2-1 . 75 of plant consolidation and restructuring costs, $ 6-1 . 2 of bad debt expense and $ 2. 4 of other
items. For fiscal 2024, other operating expenses consisted primarily of $ 70. 4 of amortization expense, $ 2. 7 of plant
consolldatlon and restructurmg costs, $ 0.2 of bad debt expense $0.3of acqulsmon costs $ 0 6 of 1osses on dlSpOSdl of

Expense Net FY25 FY24 -F%L2-3—3> Chdnoe % Chdnoe lnterest expense $ 59. 8 $ 78 79 -7'-6-(18 -7’—$—2—9) 23.9) 9%—6—% % of
net sales 5-3 . 6-7 % 5. 2-0 % Interest expense, net, consists of interest charged on the Company’ s debt agreements and
amortization of deferred financing fees, offset by interest income. Interest expense, net was $ 59. 8 for fiscal 2025 compared to
$ 78. 7 for fiscal 2024 eempared-to-$76-. FHforfiseal 2023-The decrease in interest expense is primarily related to our debt
reduction efforts, as well as the a—fesu-}t—ef—ad&rt-teﬁal—rr&efest—lnterest eﬁ—etuw&ﬂab}e—fate-Rate éebt—llheﬂgh—rﬂtefest—fates

Other Non Opemtmg (Income) / Expense FY25 FY24 F%Q—Ev—b C hdn;ce % C hdn;ce Other non- opemtmg (1ncome) /expense $(
1.8)$1.7$66%(43.5) (205 . 9 HF4-H-) % % of net sales (0. 1) % 0. 41 % Other non- operating expense-income for
fiscal 2624-2025 totaled $ 1. #8 , consisting primarily of a § 4. 0 legal settlement partially offset by post- retirement benefit
costs and foreign exchange gains and losses . Non- operating costs incurred during fiscal 2623-2024 were $ 6-1 . 6-7 ,

consmmg prlmarlly of eesfs—asseeta-ted—wﬁ-h—post retirement beneht costs p-}&ns—}ed—by—a—$—4—3—sett-}emeﬁt—}ess—fe}a+ed-te—t-he

%92—3— lncome dees FY25 FY24 F%Q—?;—lmome tax expense $65.7 $ 51.9 -$—43—9—Eﬁect1ve tax rate Wlth dlSCIete items 21 1
% 19. 8 %526-—5-% Effective tax rate without discrete items 22-23 . 9-5 % 22. 9 % Income tax expense for fiscal 2024-2025 was
$ 65.7 compared to $ 51. 9 eemparedto-$43-0-for fiscal 2023-2024 . Our effective income tax rate for fiscal 2024-2025 was
1921 . &1 % compared to 26-19 . 5-8 % for fiscal 2023-2024 . The effective income tax rates are different from the U. S.
statutory rate due to the U. S. credits for increasing research activities and foreign- derived intangible income provision , which
decrease the rate , and differences in foreign and state income taxes , which increase the rate . The effective income tax rate for
fiscal 2025 of 21. 1 % included discrete items totaling a benefit of $ 7. 6 which is substantially related to a benefit
associated with stock- based compensation, a reduction in unrecognized tax benefits due to the expiration of the statute of
limitations, and benefits related to the release of a valuation allowance and an adjustment related to state
remeasurements. The effective income tax rate for fiscal 2025 without these discrete items would have been 23.5 % . The
effective income tax rate for fiscal 2024 of 19. 8 % included discrete items totaling a benefit of $ 8. 2 which is substantially
related to a benefit associated with stock- based compensation, a reduction in unrecognized tax benefits due to the expiration of
the statute of limitations, and the accrual of deferred tax assets related to state tax modifications. The effective income tax rate

f01 fiscal 2024 Wlthout these discrete items Would have been 22 - Fheeffeetive-ineometaxrate-fortiseal 202301 26—5%

e8 v hese-dtse 5 ha § —Global Minimum de In Octobel 2021 the Ol‘LdlllSdthH
for Economic Co operation and Dev elopment (“ OECD ) dnnounced an Inclusive Framework on Base Erosion and Profit



Shifting including Pillar Two Model Rules defining the global minimum tax, which calls for the taxation of large multinational
corporations at a minimum rate of 15 %. Subsequently multiple sets of administrative guidance have been issued. Many non- US
tax jurisdictions have either recently enacted legislation to adopt certain components of the Pillar Two Model Rules beginning in
2024 with the adoption of additional components in later years or announced their plans to enact legislation in future years . The
Company has performed an assessment of the potential impact to its income taxes as a result of Pillar Two. Based on the
results of the assessment, the Company believes that it can avail itself of the transitional safe harbor rules in all
jurisdictions in which the Company operates. We will continue to monitor both the U. S. and international legislative
developments related to Pillar Two to assess for any potential impacts . We are continuing to evaluate the impacts of enacted
legislation and pending legislation to enact Pillar Two Model Rules in the non- US tax jurisdictions in which we operate.
Segment Information We report our financial results under two operating segments: Aerospace / Defense and Industrial. We use
gross margin as the primary measurement to assess the financial performance of each reportable segment. Aerospace / Defense
Segment: FY25 FY24 F¥23-$ Change % Change Net sales $ 592. 8 $ 519. 4 § 436-73 . 4 14 3-$-89-. | 26-7% Gross margin $
243.1 $208. 8 $4H-34 . 316 9-$37 4 822-2-% Gross margin % 41. 0 % 40. 2%39-7F% SC & A $42.6$37.8 $3+4 . 1§
8 12. 6 F24-F9% % of segment net sales 7. 3-2 % 7. 23 % Net sales increased $ 89-73. 4, or 14 . | 70r20-7%, for fiscal 2025
compared to fiscal 2024 eempared-to-fiseal 2023- Commercial acrospace net sales , which consisted of $ 278317 . 5-8 of
OEM and $ #5-83 . 3-1 of distribution and aftermarket, increased by 26-13 . 3 % compared to fiscal 2623-2024 when OEM net
sales were $ 234-278 . 4-5 and distribution and aftermarket net sales were $ 59-75 . 7-3 . This was driven by a continuing
recovery as build rates and orders esealated-grew in the OEM markets and the-aftermarket demand remained strong began-to
pteleap-. Our defense markets net sales , which consisted of $ 435-146 . 3 of OEM and $ 3845 . 3-6 of distribution and
aftermarket, increased by 2415 . 69 % Compared to ﬁscal %92—3—2024 When OEM net sales were $ -1—1-9—135 3 and distribution
and aftermarket net sales were $ 25—30 3 O- ; A Fre-te

growth in demand -t-he—earl-y—st&ges—ef—t-}ns—pfeees‘s—whrch we expect o contrnue to-see-in upcoming quar ters Our defense
markets, which represented about 3432 . 9-4 % of sales, increased by approximately 2415 . 6-9 % during the period, driven by
increased sales and order volume in the marine , fixed wing, and helieopter-missiles and guided munitions end markets.
Overal-distributton-Distribution and aftermarket sales, which represent 26-21 . 3-7 % of segment sales, were up 23-21 . 47 %
year over year. Gross margin was $ 243. 1, or 41 0% of net sales, in fiscal 2025 compared to $ 208. 8, or 40. 2 % of net=sales,

for the same perlod in fiscal 2024 . We anticipate
additional margin expansion in the ﬁext—upcommg year as the -rnefeasmg—growmg orders on-for commercral products add-are
expected to increase volime-volumes flowing through our ptantsmanufacturing facilities driving cost efficiencies. Industrial
Segment: FY25 FY24 F¥23-$ Change % Change Net sales $ 1, 043.5 $ 1, 040. 9 $ 2 4039-. 6 8-$4+9-0. 2 % Gross margin $
483.08$461. 7 $433-21 . 3 48527 96 —4"% Gross margin % 46. 3 % 44. 4 %448 SG & A $136.5$ 132. 8 $ 422-5-§%
+6-3 8. 47 2.9 % % of segment net sales 13. 1 % 12 —8%+. 8 % Net sales increased $ +2 . 9-6 , or 0. 2 %, during fiscal
2624-2025 compared to the same period last year. The continued strong performance was driven by the efergy-mining ;and
general industrial markets. Sales to distribution and the aftermarket were $ 717. 4 in fiscal 2025 compared to $ 707. 6 in-fiseat
2024-cempared-te-$-694-—7F-in the prior year, a 2-1 . 3-4 % year over year increase. OEM sales were $ 333-326 . 3-1 for fiscal
2624-2025 compared to $ 347333 . 3 in the prior year. The4-2 . 8-1 % decrease in OEM sales compared to the prior year was
primarily due to seme-softness in the semteerrmachinery, oil and gas, and semiconductor equipment end marketmarkets .
Gross margrn was $ 483. 0, or 46 3 % of net sales, m fiscal 2025 compared to $ 4(1 7,0r44.4 % ofﬁet—sales for the same

Gafeh-na— The expansion in margrn year over year was J:c-zel—lay—ees’c—attrlbutable to manufacturlng efﬁcrencres and aehteve&
t-hfeug-h—s-ynefgy,—product mi § atep y 55

$ 82 9 $ 7617 .3 ZOH—& 8 9—9—% % oftotal net sales 5—6 31 % 5 2-3 % Corporate SG & A -mefeased—$—6—8—er—9—9%f0r
fiscal 2025 increased $ 17. 3 or 20. 8 % compared to fiscal 2024 eempared-te-fiseal-2623-due to increased spend-spending in
IT and personnel- related costs. As a percentage of net sales, Corporate SG & A was relatively flat year over year. Liquidity and
Capital Resources Our business is capital- intensive. Our capital requirements include manufacturing equipment and materials.
In addition, we have historically fueled our growth, in part, through acquisitions. We have historically met our working capital,
capital expenditure requirements and acquisition funding needs through our net cash flows provided by operations, various debt
arrangements and sale of equity to investors. We believe that operating cash flows and available credit under our revolving bank
credit facilities will provide adequate resources to fund internal growth initiatives for the foreseeable future. Our ability to meet
future working capital, capital expenditures and debt service requirements will depend on our future financial performance,
which will be affected by a range of economic, competitive and business factors, particularly interest rates, cyclical changes in
our end markets and prices for steel and our ability to pass through price increases on a timely basis, many of which are outside
of our control. In addition, future acquisitions could have a significant impact on our liquidity position and our need for
additional funds. From time to time, we evaluate our existing facilities and operations and their strategic importance to us. If we
determine that a given facility or operation does not have future strategic importance, we may sell, relocate, consolidate or
otherwise dispose of those operations. Although we believe our operations would not be materially impaired by such
dispositions, relocations or consolidations, we could incur significant cash or non- cash charges in connection with them.
Liquidity As of March 36-29 , 2624-2025 , we had cash and-eashequivatents-of $ 63-36 . 5-8 , of which, approximately $ 2523 .
9-7 was cash held by our foreign operations. We expect that our undistributed foreign earnings will be re- invested indefinitely
for working capital, internal growth and acquisitions for and by our foreign subsidiaries , with the exception of our Canadian



operations as there are no current plans to expand on the sales operations within that jurisdiction . As discussed in further
detail below, we also have the ability to borrow money from our existing credit facilities. Domestic Credit Facility In fiscal
2022, RBC Bearings Incorporated, our top holding company, and our Roller Bearing Company of America, Inc. subsidiary (*“
RBCA ”) entered into a Credit Agreement (the ““ Credit Agreement ) with Wells Fargo Bank, National Association (“ Wells
Fargo ”), as Administrative Agent, Collateral Agent, Swingline Lender and Letter of Credit Issuer and the other lenders party
thereto. The Credit Agreement provides the Company with (a) a $ 1, 300. 0 term loan (the “ Term Loan ), which was used to
fund a portion of the cash purchase price for the acquisition of Dodge Industrial ;7Hre—~“Peodge3-and to pay related fees and
expenses, and (b) a $ 500. 0 revolving credit facility (the “ Revolving Credit Facility ” and together with the Term Loan, the
Facilities ). Debt issuance costs associated with the Credit Agreement totaled $ 14. 9 and are being amortized over the life of
the Credit Agreement. Initialy-ameunts-Amounts outstanding under the Facilities generally bere-bear interest at either, at the
Company’ s option, (a) a base rate determined by reference to the higher of (i) Wells Fargo’ s prime lending rate, (ii) the federal
funds effectwe rate plus 0 -lﬂ%—e-f—l— 99—50 % and (111) Term SOFR

Credlt Agreement based on SOFR he

the secured overnight financing rate adm1n1stered by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York (LSOF-RL) plus 1 se—t-hﬁt

borrowings-tunder-the-Faetlittes-denominated-n-t- 00 % or (b) S—dellafs—beafmtefest—at—a—fate—pefaﬁﬂum—equal—te—Term SOFR

tas-defined-in-the-Credit-Agreement)-plus a credit spread adjustment of 0. 10 % plus a margin ranging from 0. 75 % to 2. 00 %
depending on the Company” s consolidated ratio of total net debt to consolidated EBITDA (as defined within the Credit

Agreement) from time to time . The Facilities are subject to a SOFR floor of 0. 00 %. As of March 36-29 , 2624-2025 , the
Company’ s margin was 1. 2500 % for SOFR loans, the commitment fee rate was 0. 26-175 %, and the letter of credit fee rate
was 1. 2500 %. A portion of the Term Loan is subject to a fixed- rate interest swap as discussed in Note 43-12 . The Term Loan
matures in November 2026 and amortizes in quarterly installments with the balance payable on the maturity date. The Company
can elect to prepay some or all of the outstanding balance from time to time without penalty, which will offset future quarterly
amortization installments. Due to prepayments previously made, the required future principal payments on the Term Loan are $
0 for fiscal 2025;-$-0-fer-fiseal-2026 ;-and $ 675-413 . 0 for fiscal 2027. The Revolving Credit Facility expires in November
2026, at which time all amounts outstanding under the Revolving Credit Facility will be payable. The Credit Agreement
requires the Company to comply with various covenants, including the following financial covenants: (a) a maximum Total Net
Leverage Ratio (as defined within the Credit Agreement) of 5. 00: 1. 00, which maximum Total Net Leverage Ratio shall
decrease during certain subsequent test periods as set forth in the Credit Agreement (provided that, no more than once during the
term of the Facilities, such maximum ratio applicable at such time may be increased by the Company by 0. 50: 1. 00 for a period
of twelve (12) months after the consummation of a material acquisition); and (b) a minimum Interest Coverage Ratio of 2. 00: 1.
00. As of March 36-29 , 2624-2025 the Company was in compliance with all debt covenants. The Credit Agreement allows the
Company to, among other things, make distributions to stockholders, repurchase its stock, incur other debt or liens, or acquire or
dispose of assets provided that the Company complies with certain requirements and limitations of the Credit Agreement. The
Company’ s domestic subsidiaries have guaranteed the Company’ s obligations under the Credit Agreement, and the Company’
s obligations and the domestic subsidiaries’ guaranty are secured by a pledge of substantially all of the assets of the Company
and its domestic subsidiaries. As of March 36-29 , 2624-2025 , $ 675-413 . 0 was outstanding under the Term Loan, $ 5. 0 was
outstanding under the Revolving Credit Facility and $ 3. 7 of the Revolvmg Credit Facility was being utilized to provide
letters of cred1t to secure the Company s obllgatlons relatlng to certain 1nsurance programs —aﬂd—$—l—8—9—eﬂ-he—Reve-l-ﬁng—Gred-1-t
el p SHIESS8S P hteh-ts-dis e . The Company
had the ab1l1ty to borrow up to an add1t10nal $ 4—7—8—491 3 under the Revolvrng Credrt F acrhty as of March 36-29 . 2624-2025 .
Senior Notes In fiscal 2022, RBCA issued $ 500. 0 aggregate principal amount of 4. 375 % Senior Notes due 2029 (the “ Senior
Notes 7). The net proceeds from the issuance of the Senior Notes were approximately $ 492. 0, after deducting initial
purchasers’ discounts and commissions and offering expenses, and were used to fund a portion of the purchase price for the
acquisition of Dodge. The Senior Notes were issued pursuant to an indenture with Wilmington Trust, National Association, as
trustee (the *“ Indenture ). The Indenture contains covenants limiting the ability of the Company to (i) incur additional
indebtedness or guarantee indebtedness, (ii) declare or pay dividends, redeem stock or make other distributions to stockholders,
(ii1) make investments, (iv) create liens or use assets as security in other transactions, (v) merge or consolidate, or sell, transfer,
lease or dispose of substantially all of its assets, (vi) enter into transactions with affiliates, and (vii) sell or transfer certain assets.
These covenants contain various exceptions, limitations and qualifications. At any time that the Senior Notes are rated
investment grade, certain of these covenants will be suspended. The Senior Notes are guaranteed jointly and severally on a
senior unsecured basis by RBC Bearings and certain of RBCA” s existing and future wholly- owned domestic subsidiaries that
also guarantee the Credit Agreement. Interest on the Senior Notes accrues at a rate of 4. 375 % and is payable semi — annually in
cash in arrears on April 15 and October 15 of each year. The Senior Notes will mature on October 15, 2029. The Company may
redeem some or all of the Senior Notes at any time on or after October 15, 2024 at the redemption prices set forth in the
Indenture, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to, but excluding, the redemption date. The Company may also redeem up to
40 % of the Senior Notes using the proceeds of certain equity offerings completed before October 15, 2024, at a redemption
price equal to 104. 375 % of the pr1nc1pal amount thereof plus accrued and unpa1d interest, if any, to, but excludlng, the
redempt1on date. Ina 7 P may-red 0 p

bttt—e*el-ud:tﬁg—t-he—fedempt-teﬁ-d&te—lf the Company sells certain of its assets or experiences spec1ﬁc kinds of changes in control

the Company must offer to purchase the Senior Notes. Foreign Borrowing Arrangements One of our foreign subsidiaries,



Schaublin SA, has a CHF 5. 0 (approximately $ 5. 85 USD) credit line (the “ Foreign Credit Line ”’) with Credit Suisse
(Switzerland) Ltd to prowde future working capital, if necessary. As of March 38-29 | 2624-2025 , $2- 2 had-beenberrewed

$ 0. 1 was being utilized to provide a bank guarantee. Fees associated with the Foreign Credit
Line are nominal . In July 2024, Swiss Tool Systems, one of our foreign subsidiaries, purchased the building where it
operates for CHF 7. 1 (approximately $ 8. 4 USD) and took out a 10- year fixed- rate mortgage on the building for CHF
4. 0 (approximately $ 4. S USD) . Interest Rate Swap In fiscal 2023, the Company entered into a three- year &SB-U. S. dollar -
denominated interest rate swap (*“ the Interest Rate Swap ) from a third- party financial counterparty under the Credit
Agreement. The Interest Rate Swap was executed to protect the Company from interest rate volatility on our variable- rate
Term Loan Faetlity-. The Interest Rate Swap became effective December 30, 2022 and is comprised of a $ 600. 0 notional with
a mdtunty of tlnee yedrs We receive a variable rate based on one- month Term SOFR and pdy a fixed rate of 4.455 %. Asof

notlonal on the Interest Rate Sde will amortize as follows: Year l: $ 600 0 Yedl 2 $ 400.0 Year 3: $ 100 0 The Interest
Rate Swap has been designated as a cash flow hedge of the variability of the first unhedged interest payments (the hedged
transactions) paid over the hedging relationship’ s specified time period of three years attributable to the borrowing’ s
contractually specified interest index on the hedged principal of its general borrowing program or replacement or refinancing
thereof. Cross Currency Swap The Company is exposed to foreign exchange rate fluctuations as some of our subsidiaries
operate in various countries. On August 12, 2024, the Company entered into the Cross Currency Swap with a third-
party financial counterparty. The objective of the Cross Currency Swap is to economically hedge the Company’ s net
investment in its lower- tier European subsidiary, Schaublin, against adverse changes in the Swiss franc / U. S. dollar
exchange rate. The Cross Currency Swap is based upon a net investment of CHF 69. 4 ($ 80. 0 USD) notional amount
with a three- year maturity date. RBC receives a fixed U. S. dollar amount on a month- to- month basis based upon a
fixed annual rate of 2. 77 % of the notional amount. At maturity, RBC will net- settle the principal of the Cross
Currency Swap in cash with the counterparty. The Cross Currency Swap has been designated as a net investment hedge
on an after- tax basis. Preferred Stock Prior to October 15, 2024, the Company had outstanding 4, 600, 000 shares of 5.
00 % Series A Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock (“ MCPS ) to which we paid a quarterly dividend aggregating $
5. 75, but on that date each then- outstanding share of the MCPS converted into 0. 4413 shares of common stock,
resulting in the retirement of the MCPS and the issuance of 2, 029, 955 shares of common stock. Because the MCPS is no
longer outstanding, the Company will not pay MCPS dividends in the future, resulting in a cash savings of $ 23. 0 per
year. Cash Flows Fiscal 2025 Compared to Fiscal 2024 The following table summarizes our cash flow activities: FY25 FY24
F¥23-§ Change Net cash provided by (used in): Operating activities $ 293. 6 $ 274. 7 $ 226-18 . 9 6-$-54-Investing activities (
49. 8) (52. 2) 403382 ¥. 4 Financing activities ( 270. 4) (223. 5) ( 322-46 . 8-9 ) 99-3-Effect of exchange rate changes on
cash (0. 1) (0. 9) €3)0. 48 (Decrease) / increase in cash and-eashequivalents$ (26.7) $ (1. 9) § (HF24 . 58 ) $H56
During fiscal 2824-2025 , we generated cash of § 274-293 . -6 from operating activities compared to $ 228-274 . 6-7 for fiscal
2023-2024 . The increase of $ 54-18 . +9 was mainly the result of a $ 43-36 . 2-3 increase in net income and-a-$124favorable
ehange-innon—eashaetivity-partially offset by a $§ 6. 2 unfavorable change in non- cash activity and net unfavorable change
in operating assets and liabilities of $ 4+11 . 5-2 . The unfavorable change in operating assets and liabilities is detailed in the table
below. The change in non- cash activity was primarily driven by $ 3-0 . 9-7 more depreciation and amortization ;-and $ 3-11 . 4
0 more stock- based compensation and-afaverable-ehangeindeferred-taxesof $-9—;partially offset by $ 40 . 2-6 less
amortization of deferred financing costs , a $ 14. S unfavorable change in deferred taxes, $ 0. 5 less non- cash operating
lease expense, $ 0. 2 less losses on the disposition of assets, and $ 2. 1 less in restructuring and other non- cash charges .
The following chart summarizes the impact on cash flow from operating assets and liabilities for fiscal 2624-202S versus fiscal
2023-2024 . FY25 FY24 F¥23-Cash provided by (used in): Accounts receivable $ (53.3) $ ( 13. 4) $F8-Inventory ( 32. 3) (
31. 6 ¥H—F) Prepaid expenses and other current assets ( 3. 9) (2. 4 H5-8-) Other noncurrent assets 0. 5 (3. 0 36-8-) Accounts
payable 22. 2 (30. 7 3(H++) Accrued expenses and other current liabilities (2. 3) 9 —0-6-. 0 Other noncurrent liabilities ( 14. 7) (
0. 5) 4—5-Total change in operating assets and liabilities $ ( 83. 8) $ ( 72. 6 ¥$F—3) During fiscal 2024-2025 , we used $ 5249
. 2-8 for investing activities as compared to $ +4-52 . 6-2 for fiscal 2623-2024 . This inerease-decrease in cash used was
primarily attributable to $ 19. 3 efless cash used for acquisitions in fiscal 2024-2025 eempared-to-a-favorable-purehaseprice

adjustment of $ 27 54n-fiseal 2023~ This was partially offset by $ 8-16 . 8-fewer-6 more capital expenditures and $ 0. 3 less
proceeds from the sale of assets in fiscal 2025 compared to fiscal 2024 eempared-to-fiseal2623-. During fiscal 2624-2025 ,

we used cash of § 223-270 . 54 for financing activities compared to $ 322-223 . §-5 in fiscal 2623-2024 . This favefab-}e-chdnoe
was primarily due to § 8-82 . -4 more repayments on our revolvmg credlt facnhtles and $ 37 0 more repayments on the
Term Loan partially offset by $ 46. 7 more proceeds from e 0 v
from our revolving credit facilities and-, $ 75-14 . 8-5 more proceeds from the exercise of employee stock optlons, $4.5
proceeds from a mortgage, and $ 5. 8 lcss preferred stock dividends paid

Capital EXpelldltUIGS Our capital expenditures in fiscal 2025 were $ 49. 8 compared to $ 33. 2 in fiscal 2024 Wefe—$—3—31"-

. We expect to make capital expenditures of approximately 3. 0 % to 3. 5 % of net sales
during fiscal %925—2026 in connection with our existing business. We funded our fiscal 2624-202S capital expenditures, and
expect to fund fiscal 2625-2026 capital expenditures, principally through existing cash and internally generated funds. We may
also make substantial additional capital expenditures in connection with acquisitions. Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our consolidated financial
statements, which have been prepared in accordance with U. S. generally accepted accounting principles. The preparation of
these financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. We evaluate our estimates on an on- going




basis. Estimates are used for, but not limited to, the accounting for the allowance for deubtful-aeeounts-credit losses , valuation
of inventories, goodwill and intangible assets, depreciation and amortization, income taxes and tax reserves, the valuation of
options and the valuation of business combinations. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other
assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making
judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. We believe our
judgments related to these accounting estimates are appropriate. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different
assumptions or conditions. Revenue Recognition. The performance obligations for the majority of RBC’ s product sales are
satisfied at the point in time in which the products are shipped. The Company has determined that the customer obtains control
upon shipment of the product based on the shipping terms (i. e. when it ships from RBC’ s dock or when the product arrives at
the customer’ s dock) and recognizes revenue when control has transferred to the customer. Once a customer has obtained
control, the customer is able to direct the use of, and obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits from, the asset.
Approxunately 98 % of the Company’ s revenue was recogmzed in this manner based on sales for the fiscal year% ended March

batanee-sheets-. [nventory. lnventory is stated at the lower of cost or net reahzable value. Co%t is determlned by the ﬁr%t in,
first- out method. We account for inventory under a full absorption method. We record adjustments to the value of inventory
based upon past sales history and forecasted plans to sell our inventories. The physical condition, including age and quality, of
the inventories is also considered in establishing its valuation. These adjustments are estimates, which could vary significantly,
either favorably or unfavorably, from actual requirements if future economic conditions, customer inventory levels or
competitive conditions differ from our expectations. Goodwill and Indefinite- Lived Intangible Assets. Goodwill (representing
the excess of the amount paid to acquire a company over the estimated fair value of the net assets acquired) and indefinite- lived
intangible assets are not amortized but instead are tested for impairment annually, or when events or circumstances indicate that
the carrying value of such asset may not be recoverable. Separate tests are performed for goodwill and indefinite lived
intangible assets. The Company performs the annual impairment testing during the fourth quarter of each fiscal year. We
completed a quantitative test of impairment on the indefinite lived intangible assets with no impairment noted in fiscal year
2624-2025 . The determination of any goodwill impairment is made at the reporting unit level. The Company determines the
fair value of a reporting unit and compares it to its carrying amount. If the carrying amount of the reporting unit exceeds its fair
value, an impairment loss is recognized for anythe amount by which the carrying amount exceeds the reporting unit’ s fair
value. The Company applies the income approach (discounted cash flow method) in testing goodwill for impairment. The key
assumptions— assumption used in the discounted cash flow method used to estimate fair value is gross inelude-the-diseount

fafes,—feveﬂue—gfewt-h—rafes-aﬁd—EB{%BA—margm which are-is affected by expectations about future market or economic

g a - Ai@ummg no growth n -E-B-I—T—BA—gross margln Wl

not result in 1mpa1rment of goodwﬂl f01 any of our reporting units -

during-the-fourth-quarter-ofeachfisealyear-. Although no changes are expected 1f the actual reqult% of the C ompany are le%
favorable than the assumptions the Company makes regarding estimated cash flows, the Company may be required to record an
impairment charge in the future. Valuation of Business Combinations. We allocate the amounts we pay for each acquisition to
the assets we acquire and liabilities we assume based on their estimated fair values at the date of acquisition, including
identifiable intangible assets, which either arise from a contractual or legal right or are separable from goodwill. We base the fair




value of identifiable intangible assets acquired in a business combination on detailed valuations which are prepared with the
assistance of a specialist and consider our best estimates of inputs and assumptions that a market participant would use. We
utilize a specialist for these valuations due to the complexity and estimation uncertainty involved in determining the fair value
given the significant assumptions involved. Significant assumptions utilized in the valuation models include discount rates,
revenue growth rates and EBITDA margins. We allocate to goodwill any excess purchase price over the fair value of the net
tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired. Transaction costs associated with these acquisitions are expensed as incurred
through other, net on the consolidated statements of operations. Income Taxes. As part of the process of preparing the
consolidated financial statements, we are required to estimate the income taxes in each jurisdiction in which we operate. This
process involves estimating the actual current tax liabilities together with assessing temporary differences resulting from the
differing treatment of items for tax and financial reporting purposes. These differences result in deferred tax assets and
liabilities, which are included in the consolidated balance sheets. We must then assess the likelihood that the deferred tax assets
will be recovered, and to the extent that we believe that recovery is not more than likely, we are required to establish a valuation
allowance. If a valuation allowance is established or increased during any period, we are required to include this amount as an
expense within the tax provision in the consolidated statements of operations. Significant judgment is required in determining
our provision for income taxes, deferred tax assets and liabilities, accrual for uncertain tax positions and any valuation
allowance recognized against net deferred tax assets. Recent Accountrng Pronouncementi For a discussion of recent accounting
pronouncements refer to Note 2. pa G : : : :

fna’eeﬂa-IS—Off Balance Sheet Arrangementi The Company has $ 3. 7 of outqtandrng %tandby Ietters of credrt aIl of Wthh are
under the Revolvrng Credrt Facrhty We ; ;

i i i W had no qrgnrﬁcant off- balance sheet arrangements
as OfI\/Iarch %9—29 7'}92-4-2025 ITEI\/I 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET
RISK We are exposed to market risks ;which arise during the normal course of business from changes in interest rates and
foreign currency exchange rates. Interest Rates. We currently have variable rate debt outstanding under the Term Loan Facility.
We regularly evaluate the impact of interest rate changes on our net income and cash flow and take action to limit our exposure
when appropriate. As discussed in *“ Liquidity and Capital Resources ” in Item 7 of this Annual Report, we have utilized an-the
-l-ntefest—lnterest f&te—Rate sw&p—Swap to ﬁx a portron of the Varrable rate interest expen%e as%ocrated Wrth the Term Loan —As

ag-feemeﬂt—tn—pIaee— Foreign Currency Exchange Rate% As an 1nternat10nal cornpany, our oper ations transact in the followrng
foreign currencies: ® Australia — Australian dollar @ India — rupee ® Canada — Canadian dollar @ Mexico — peso @ China —
Chinese yuan @ Poland — zloty @ France and Germany — euro @ Switzerland — Swiss franc @ England — British pound As a
result, we are exposed to risk associated with fluctuating currency exchange rates between the U. S. dollar and these currencies.
Foreign currency transaction gains and losses are included in earnings. Approximately 42-11 % of our net sales were impacted
by foreign currency fluctuations in fiscal 2824-2025 compared to approximately 12 % of net sales in fiscal 2623-2024 . For those
countries outside the U. S. where we have sales, a strengthening in the U. S. dollar or devaluation in the local currency would
reduce the value of our local inventory as presented in our consolidated financial statements. In addition, a stronger U. S. dollar
or a weaker local currency would result in reduced net sales, operating profit and shareholders’ equity due to the impact of
foreign exchange translation on our consolidated financial statements . The opposite would be true if the U. S. dollar were to
get comparatively weaker to those foreign currencies . Fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates may make our
products more expensive or increase our operating costs, affecting our competitiveness and our profitability. Changes in
exchange rates between the U. S. dollar and other currencies and volatile economic, political and market conditions in emerging
market countries have in the past adversely affected our financial performance and may in the future adversely affect the value
of our assets located outside the United States and our results of operations. We periodically enter into derivative financial
instruments trthe-formofforward-exehange-eontraets—to reduce the effect of fluctuations in exchange rates on eertain-third-
party-sales-and-purehase-transactions and account balances denominated in non- functional currencies. As of March 36-29 ,
2624-2025 , the Company had ne-ferward-exehange-eontraets-the Cross Currency Swap, which is discussed in “ Liquidity
and Capital Resources ” in Item 7 of this Annual Report . [TEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SUPPLEMENTARY DATA Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm To the Stockholders and the Board of
Directors of RBC Bearings Incorporated Opinion on the Financial Statements We have audited the accompanying consolidated



balance sheets of RBC Bearings Incorporated (the Company) as of March 29, 2025 and March 30, 2024 and-Aprit452023-, the
related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended March 36-29 , 2624-2025 , and the related notes (collectively referred to as the “ consolidated financial
statements ). In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Company at March 29, 2025 and March 30, 2024 and-Apri;2623-, and the results of its operations and its cash flows
for each of the three years in the period ended March 36-29 , 2624-202S , in conformity with U. S. generally accepted
accounting principles. We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States) (PCAOB), the Company’ s internal control over financial reporting as of March 36-29 , 2624-2025 , based
on criteria established in Internal Control —- Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (2013 framework), and our report dated May +716 , 2024-2025 expressed an unqualified opinion
thereon. Basis for Opinion These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’ s management. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on the Company’ s financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered
with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U. S. federal securities
laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB. We conducted our
audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud.
Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis,
evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. Critical Audit Matter The critical audit matter
communicated below is a matter arising from the current period audit of the financial statements that was communicated or
required to be communicated to the audit committee and that: (1) relates to accounts or disclosures that are material to the
financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subjective or complex judgments. The communication of the
critical audit matter does not alter in any way our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are
not, by communicating the critical audit matter below, providing a separate opinion on the critical audit matter or on the account
or disclosures to which it relates. Valuation of Goodwill — AnnuaHmpatrment-evaluation-Industrial Reporting Unit
Description of the Matter At March 36-29 , 2624-2025 , the Company’ s goodwill was $ 1, 872 874=9-million , which is
allocated primarily to the Industrial reporting unit . As discussed in Notes 2 and +6-9 of the consolidated financial
statements, goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually at the reporting unit level annalty-. As of February 22 , er
whetrevents-oreireumstanees-indteate-2025, the Company’ s measurement date, the Company determmed that the falr
value of the reporting unit exceeded its carrying value efs v y ; at
vatuie-ofttsreporting-units-ustng-an-and therefore no 1mpa1rment was recognlzed -rneeme—appfeaeh—speetﬁeawl-l-yha—dﬁeeuﬂted
eash-flow-analysts-. Auditing management’ s annual goodwill impairment test was complex and highty—judgmental due to the
significant estimatiorrestimations required to determine the fair value of the reporting usits— unit . Fhe-In particular, the
determination of the fair value required management estimates-were-sensitive-to make ehanges-insignificant assumptions
such-as-the-diseountrates-, lncludlng gross feventte—g-fewt-h—fafes—aﬁd—E—BI—’PBA—margm which are-is affected by expectations
about future market or economic conditions. How We Addressed the Matter in Our Audit We obtained an understanding,
evaluated the design and tested the operating effectiveness of controls over the Company”’ s goodwill impairment review
process, including controls over management’ s review of the significant assumptions described above. To test the estimated fair
value ofthe-Company—s-teporting-units-, we performed audit procedures, with the assistance of our valuation specialists, that
included, among others, assessing the methodologies utilized and testing the significant assumptions discussed above and the
underlying data used by the Company in its analysis. We compared the significant assumptions used by management to current
industry and economic trends. We assessed the historical accuracy of management’ s estimates and performed sensitivity
analyses of significant assumptions to evaluate the-changes in the-fair value efthe-reporting-anits-that would result from
changes in the underlying assumptions. In addition, we evaluated the reconciliation of the fair value of the reporting snits— unit
to the market capitalization of the Company. / s / Ernst & Young LLP We have served as the Company’ s auditor since 2002.
Stamferd-Hartford , Connecticut May+7-2624-Consolidated Balance Sheets (amounts in millions, except share and per share
data) March 29, 2025 March 30, 2024 AprH52023-ASSETS Current assets: Cash and-eashequivalents-$ 36. 8 $ 63. 5 $654
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for deubtful-aceounts-credit losses of $ 5. 4 at March 29, 2025 and $ 4. 4 at March 30,
2024 307 and-$3-. 6 Fat-Apri152023-255. 2 239—6-Inventory 654. 5 622. 8 58F2-Prepaid expenses and other current assets
28. 4 24. 0 24—-Total current assets 1, 027. 3 965. 5 H43—3-Property, plant and equipment, net 359. 0 361. 0 3#5-—3-Operating
lease assets 58 yaet44- 4-6 41. 4 Goodwill 1, 872.2 1, 874. 9 5-869—8-Intangible assets, net 1,325.11, 391 =9+452- 9 Other
noncurrent assets 43. 0 43. 9 37—FTotal assets $ 4, 685.2 $ 4, 678. 6 $4-690~4LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’
EQUITY Current liabilities: Accounts payable $ 138. 4 $ 116. 2 $3446-8-Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 166. 0
167. 3 $53—4-Current operating lease liabilities 9. 2 7. 0 76-Current portion of long- term debt 1. 7 3. 8§ +-5-Total current
liabilities 315. 3 294 —3-369-. 3 Long- term debt, less current portion 918. 4 1, 188. 1 ,393—5-Noncurrent operating lease
liabilities 50. 3 35. 3 33—9-Deferred income taxes 257. 8 284. 2 285—4-Other noncurrent liabilities 112. 0 124. 8 +22—Total
liabilities 1, 653. 8 1, 926. 7 2,354-5-Commitments and contingencies (Note 48-17 ) Stockholders’ equity: Preferred stock, $. 01
par value; authorlzed shares: 10, 000, 000 as of March 29, 2025 and March 30, 2024 and-Apri52623-, respectively; issued
shares: 0 and 4, 600, 000 as of March 29, 2025 and March 30, 2024 and-Apri+2023-, respectively — 6-0-0. 0 Common
stock, $. 01 par value; authorized shares: 60, 000, 000 at March 29, 2025 and March 30, 2024 and-Aprid52023-, respectively;
issued shares: 32, 522, 189 and 30, 227, 444 and-29;-989;-948-at March 29, 2025 and March 30, 2024 and-Apri;2623-,




respectively 0. 3 0. 3 Additional paid- in capital 1, 682. 5 1, 625. 2 5-589-9-Accumulated other comprehensive income / (loss)
(1. 4) 0. 7 4—-Retained earnings 1, 450. 6 1, 216. 8 ;-629-9-Treasury stock, at cost, 1, 046, 569 shares and 1, 015, 053
shares-and-966;398-shares at March 29, 2025 and March 30, 2024 and-AprHd52023-, respectively ( 100. 6) (91 —H86-. 1)
Total stockholders’ equity 3, 031. 4 2, 751 92,535~ 9 Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 4, 685.2 $ 4, 678. 6 $4;-690-
4-See accompanying notes. Consolidated Statements of Operations Fiscal Year Ended March 29, 2025 March 30, 2024 April 1,
2023 Ape252022-Net sales $ 1, 636.3 $1, 560. 3 § 1, 469. 3 $9429-Cost of sales 910. 2 889. 8 864. 5 585-8-(Gross margin
726.1 670. 5 604. 8 357+Operating expenses: Selling, general and administrative 279. 3 253. 5 229. 7 +67-6-Other, net 76. 9
74. 8 82. 1 68—4-Total operating expenses 356. 2 328. 3 311. 8 236-—6-Operating income 369. 9 342. 2 293. 0 +2+—-Interest
expense, net 59. 8 78. 7 76. 7 4-5-Other non- operating expense / (income) (1. 8) 1. 7 6. 6 8-9-Income before income taxes
311.9 261. 8 209 ~7F78-. 7 Provision for income taxes 65.7 51. 9 43 -8-24-. 0 Net income $ 246.2 $209. 9 § 166 —F$54- 7
Preferred stock dividends 12. 4 23. 0 22. 9 42-8-Net income attributable to common stockholders $ 233.8 $ 186.9 $ 143. 8 %
427 Net income per common share attributable to common stockholders: Basic $ 7.76 $ 6. 47 $ 5. 00 $3-58-Diluted $ 7. 70 $
6.41 $ 4. 94 $+-56-Weighted average common shares: Basic 30, 136, 501 28, 917, 008 28, 764, 092 26;-946;-355-Diluted 30,
354,470 29, 189, 056 29, 072, 429 243H;-029-Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (amounts in millions)
Fiscal Year Ended March 29, 2025 March 30, 2024 April 1, 2023 Apr-2;2022-Net income $ 246.2 $ 209. 9 § 166 —F$54-. 7
Pension and postretirement liability adjustments, net of taxes (1) 2.4 0. 4 9. 4 42-Change in fair value of Interest Rate Swap
dertvatives;net-oftaxes(2) (1. 4) 3. 4 (2. 2) Change in fair value of Cross Currency Swap (3) (0. 2) — — Foreign currency
translation adjustments (2. 9) 1. 0 (5. 5) 84-Total comprehensive income $ 244.1 8 214. 7 § 168. 4 $59-3«1) These
adjustments were net of tax expense of $ 0. 4-6 , tax expense of $ 2-0 . 4 and tax expense of § +2 . +0 in fiscal 2025, 2024 5
and 2023 and-2022-, respectively. (2) These adjustments were net of tax benefit of $ 0. 4, tax expense of $ 1. 0 and net-eftax
benefit of § 0. 6 in fiscal 2025, 2024 and 2023, respectively. (3) This adjustment was net of tax benefit of $ 0. 0 for fiscal
2023-2025 respeetively-. Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity (amounts in millions, except share data)
Aceumutated-Additional-OtherFotal-Common Stock Preferred Stock Additional Paid- in Accumulated Other Comprehensive
Retained Treasury Stock Total Stockholders” Shares Amount Shares Amount Capltal Income / (Lo%s) Eamlng% Shares Amount
Equlty alaneaq A3 4 q 66 N a

Teomc

A REeA—RE e AR ee—aaet 4 000-0 A A Franays ;_.;6_;;'.__-_.
64 6—4-Balance at April 2, 2022 29, 807,208 $ 0. 3 4, 600,000 $0.0$ 1, 564.3 § (5. 8) § 886. 1

(928, 322) $(72.4) $ 2, 372. 5 Net income¢ — — — — — — 166. 7— — 166. 7 Stock- based compensation — — — — 14. 0
— — — — 14. 0 Preferred stock dividends — — — — — — (22.9) — — (22. 9) Repurehase-of Tax withholding for
common stock issued under equity incentive plans — — — — — — — (38,076) (7. 7) (7. 7) Exercise of equity awards 116,
5630.0——11. 6 ————11. 6 Change in pension and post- retirement plan benefit adjustments, net of tax expense of $
20—m8 ——— 9.4 — ——9.4 Issuance of restricted stock, net of forfeitures 66, 177 — — — — — — — — — Change
in fair value of dertvatives-Interest Rate Swap , net of tax benefitof$0.6 — — ——— (2.2) ——— (2. 2) Currency
translation adjustments — — — — — (5.5) ——— (5. 5) Balance at April 1, 2023 29, 989,948 $ 0. 3 4, 600,00050.0$ 1,
589.9%$(4.1)$1,029.9 (966, 398) $ (80. 1) $ 2, 535. 9 Net income — — — — — — 209.9 — —209. 9 Stock- based
compensation — — — — 14. 9 — — — — 14. 9 Preferred stock dividends — — — — — — (23.0) — — (23. 0) Repurehase
of Tax withholding for common stock issued under equity incentive plans — — — — — — — (48, 655) (11.0) (11.0)
Exercise of equity awards 168, 321 0. 0 — — 20. 4 — — — — 20. 4 Change in pension and post- retirement plan benefit
adjustments, net of tax expense of $0. 4 — — — — — 0.4 — — — 0. 4 Issuance of restricted stock, net of forfeitures 69, 175
————————— Change in fair value of dertvatives-Interest Rate Swap , net of tax expense of $ 1.0 — — — — —
3.4 ———3. 4 Currency translation adjustments — — — — — 1.0 — — — 1. 0 Balance at March 30, 2024 30, 227, 444 $§
0.34,600,00050.0851,625.2%50.7$1,216.8(1,015,053)$(91.1)$2,751.9 Net income —— — — — — 246.2 —
— 246. 2 Stock- based compensation — — — — 22. 0 — — — — 22, 0 Preferred stock dividends —— — — — — (12.
4) — — (12. 4) Tax withholding for common stock issued under equity incentive plans — — — — — — — (31, 516) (9.
5) (9. 5) Conversion of mandatory convertible preferred stock to common stock 2, 029, 955 — (4, 600, 000) (0. 0) — — —
— — (0. 0) Exercise of equity awards 223, 693 0. 0 — — 34. 9 — — — — 34. 9 Change in pension and post- retirement
plan benefit adjustments, net of tax expense of $0. 6 —— — — — 2.4 —— — 2. 4 Issuance of restricted stock, net of
forfeitures 41, 097 — — — 0. 4 — — — — 0. 4 Change in fair value of Interest Rate Swap, net of tax benefit of $ 0. 4 —
————(1.4) — —— (1. 4) Change in fair value of Cross Currency Swap, net of tax benefitof $0. 0 —— — — —
(0.2) — —— (0. 2) Currency translation adjustments — — — — — (2. 9) — — — (2. 9) Balance at March 29, 2025 32,
522,189$0.3 ——9$1,682.5% (1.4) $1, 450. 6 (1, 046, 569) $ (100. 6) $ 3, 031. 4 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Fiscal Year Ended March 29, 2025 March 30, 2024 April 1, 2023 Apri2;2622-Cash flows from operating activities: Net
income $ 246. 2 $ 209. 9 $ 166 —F$54-. 7 Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 120. 0 119. 3 115. 4 6§+Defelred mcome taxeq 26 8)( 12. 3) (21. 4) 6—2-Amortization of
deferred financing costs 2. 4 3. 0 7. 2 Stock 18- RS g-and rot-- based compensation 28 eash
eharges 26232 4 17 4 14. 0 Noncash opelatlng leaqe expense 6 36. 8 7 2 S—S—I:ess-eﬁ-ext-mgaﬁhmeﬁt—ef—debt—l—g
Loss on disposition of assets 0. 4 0. 6 0. 3 Consolidation, restructuring and other
noncash charges 0.52.62 . 3 Chanoeq in operating assets and liabilities, net of acquisitions: Accounts receivable ( 53.3) ( 13.




4) 7. 8 €53—53-Inventory ( 32. 3) (31. 6) (71. 796-2) Prepaid expenses and other current assets (3. 9) (2. 4) (5 =8 8)
Other noncurrent assets 0. 5 (3. 0) (0. 8 H8—2-) Accounts payable 22. 2 (30. 7) (11. 1) 52—4-Accrued expenses and other current
liabilities (2. 3) 9. 0 6. 0 22~—4-Other noncurrent liabilities ( 14. 7) (0. 5) 4. 5 3=8-Net cash provided by operating activities 293. 6
274. 7 220. 6 $88-3-Cash flows from investing activities: Capital expenditures (49.8) (33.2)(42. 0) 29-Proceeds from sale
of assets 0.830 0 3 0 5 Acqursrtron of busrnesses / aﬂd—re}a-ted—purchase prlce adjustments for acqu1s1t10n — (19 3)27.5 (%—

sa%e—e-ﬁass‘e’ts—@%—@%—@—@-Net cash used in 1nvest1ng actrvrtres ( 49 8) ( 52. 2) (14 0 )—(9—84-7%—) Cash flows from ﬁnancmg
activities: Proceeds recelved O o

F inance fees

freﬁ%semer—netes—ﬂefe-ﬂﬁfﬁmemg—eests—494—2—Pfeeeeds—from revolvrng credrt facrhtres 67 020.3

paid in connection with credit facilities and senior notes — — (0. 1) Repayments of revolving credit facilities (+9-82 . 54 ) —
— Repayments of term loans ( 262. 0) (225. 0) (300 =03H3-. 0) Repayments of notes payable (1. 6) ( 1. 6) (0. 5) {6-Proceeds
from mortgage 4 . 53— — Principal payments on finance lease obligations (4. 1) (3. 6) (3. 2 3d—6-) Preferred stock
dividends paid ( 17. 2) (23. 0) (22 9) (—7—Exerc1se of stock optlons 34 .9 20. 4 11. 6 Repurchase of common stock (9. 5) (

11.0)(7.7) €8 v —0-Net cash previded-by-used in y-financing
activities ( 270. 4) ( 223 5) (322 8) 2—69-8%—Effect of exchange rate Changes on Cash (0. 1) (0 9) (l 3) G-Cash Increase /

(decrease) during the year (26.7) (1. 9) (117 . 5) Cash and -
53+—-8-Cashrand-eash-equivalents-, at beginning of year 63. 5 65 4 182 9 -lé-l—l—Cash aﬁd-eas-h—eq&wa-}enfs— at end ofyear $
36.8 8 63. 58 65. 4 $1829-Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information: Cash paid for: Income taxes $ 101.3 $ 56.4 $
60. 4 $34F—+Interest 55. 4 75. 7 69. 9 H—6-Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 1. Organization and Business RBC
Bearings Incorporated, together with its subsidiaries, is an international manufacturer and marketer of highly engineered
precision bearings, components and essential systems for the aerospace, defense and industrial -defense-and-aerospaee
industries, which are integral to the manufacture and operation of most machines, aircraft and mechanical systems, to reduce
wear to moving parts, facilitate proper power transmission, reduce damage and energy loss caused by friction and control
pressure and flow. The terms “ we, ” “us, ” “ our, ” “ RBC ” and the “ Company ” mean RBC Bearings Incorporated and its
subsidiaries, unless the context indicates another meaning. While we manufacture products in all major categories, we focus
primarily on highly technical or regulated bearing products and engineered products for specialized markets that require
sophisticated design, testing and manufacturing capabilities. We believe our unique expertise has enabled us to garner leading
positions in many of the product markets in which we primarily compete. Over the past +3-20 years, we have broadened our end
markets, products, customer base and geographic reach. We currently have 54 facilities in 11 countries, of which 38 are
manufacturing facilities. The Company operates in two reportable business segments — aerospace / defense and industrial — in
which it manufactures roller bearing components and assembled parts and designs and manufactures high- precision roller and
ball bearings. The Company sells to a wide variety of original equipment manufacturers (“ OEMs ") and distributors who are
widely dispersed geographically. No one customer accounted for more than +718 % of the Company’ s net sales in fiscal 2025,
17 % of net sales in fiscal 2024 ;-and 16 % of net sales in fiscal 2023 andHH-%ofnetsatesinfiseal26022-. The Company’ s
segments are further discussed in Note 26-19 . 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Basis of Presentation The
consolidated financial statements include the accounts of RBC Bearings Incorporated and its wholly- owned subsidiaries. All
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. The Company has a fiscal year consisting of 52
or 53 weeks, ending on the Saturday closest to March 31. Based on this policy, fiscal year 2025 contained 52 weeks, fiscal
year 2024 contained 52 weeks y-and fiscal year 2023 contained 52 weeks ane-. Certain amounts reported in previous years
have been reclassified to conform to the fiscal year 2622-2025 presentation eentatned-52-weeks-. Use of Estimates The
preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities, at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates are used for, but not limited to, the accounting for the
allowance for deubtful-aceounts-credit losses , valuation of inventories, goodwill and intangible assets, depreciation and
amortization, income taxes and tax reserves, purchase price allocation for acquired assets and liabilities, and the valuation of
options. ReventeReeognitton-A contract with a customer exists when there is commitment and approval from both parties
involved, the rights of the parties are identified, payment terms are defined, the contract has commercial substance, and
collectability of consideration is probable. The Company has determined that the contract with the customer is established when
the customer purchase order is accepted or acknowledged. LTAs are used by the Company and certain of its customers to reduce
their supply uncertainty for a period of time, typically multiple years. While these LTAs define commercial terms including
pricing, termination rights and other contractual requirements, they do not represent the contract with the customer for revenue
recognition purposes. When the Company accepts or acknowledges a customer purchase order, the type of good or service is
defined on a line- by- line basis. The majority of the Company’ s revenue relates to the sale of goods and contains a single
performance obligation for each distinct good. The remainder of the Company’ s revenue from customers is generated from
services performed. These services include repair and refurbishment work performed on customer- controlled assets as well as
design and test work. Transaction price reflects the amount of consideration that the Company expects to be entitled to in
exchange for transferred goods or services. A contract’ s transaction price is allocated to each distinct performance obligation
and revenue is recognized as the performance obligation is satisfied. The Company generally sells products and services with
observable standalone selling prices. The performance obligations for the majority of RBC’ s product sales are satisfied at the
point in time in which the products are shipped. The Company has determined that the customer obtains control upon shipment
of the product based on the shipping terms (i. e. when it ships from RBC’ s dock or when the product arrives at the customer’ s




dock) and recognizes revenue when control has transferred to the customer. Once a customer has obtained control, the customer
is able to direct the use of, and obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits from, the asset. The Company has determined
performance obligations are satisfied over time for customer contracts where RBC provides services to customers and also for a
limited number of product sales. RBC has determined revenue recognition over time is appropriate for our service revenue
contracts as they create or enhance an asset that the customer controls throughout the duration of the contract. Revenue
recognition over time is appropriate for customer contracts with product sales in which the product sold has no alternative use to
RBC without significant economic loss and an enforceable right to payment exists, including a normal profit margin from the
customer, in the event of contract termination. These types of contracts comprised less than 1 % of total sales for the fiscal years
ended March 29, 2025, March 30, 2024 s-and April 1, 2023 and-Aprit-2;2022-, respectively. For both of these types of
contracts, revenue is recognized over time based on the extent of progress towards completion of the performance obligation.
The Company utilizes the cost- to- cost measure of progress for over- time revenue recognition contracts as the Company
believes this measure best depicts the transfer of control to the customer, which occurs as the Company incurs costs on
contracts. Revenues, including profits, are recorded proportionally as costs are incurred. Costs to fulfill include labor, materials,
subcontractors’ costs, and other direct and indirect costs. Contract costs are the incremental costs of obtaining and fulfilling a
contract (i. e., costs that would not have been incurred if the contract had not been obtained) to provide goods and services to
customers. Contract costs largely consist of design and development costs for molds, dies and other tools that RBC will own and
that will be used in producing the products under the supply arrangements. These contract costs are amortized to expense on a
systematic and rational basis over a period consistent with the transfer to the customer of the goods or services to which the asset
relates and are recorded in cost of sales. Costs incurred to obtain a contract are primarily related to sales commissions and are
expensed as incurred. These costs are included within selling, general and administrative costs on the consolidated statements of
operations. In certain contracts, the Company facilitates shipping and handling activities after control has transferred to the
customer. The Company has elected to record all shipping and handling activities as costs to fulfill a contract. In situations
where the shipping and handling costs have not been incurred at the time revenue is recognized, the estimated shipping and
handling costs are accrued. Government Assistance Like other companies involved in the aerospace industry that were impacted
by the COVID- 19 pandemic, the Company took part in the Aviation Manufacturing Jobs Protection (“ AMJP ) program. The
AMIP program provided funding to eligible businesses to pay a portion of their compensation costs for certain categories of
employees for a period of time as part of a U. S. Department of Transportation program designed to maintain jobs in the aviation
industry. During the fiscal years ended March 29, 2025, March 30, 2024 ;-and April 1, 2023 and-Aprit2;2022-, the Company
recorded grant revenue of $ 0. 0, $ 0. 0 and $ 3. 1 and-$-4—4-, respectively, all of which was recorded within cost of sales on the
consolidated statements of operatlons The Company does not expect to receive any future grant revenue assoc1ated with the
AMJPprogram. he S etnthy Vg2 § y ne-does-notantieipate e

m&&&ﬁ-y—e#&rree—meﬁ&ls—er—less—te—be—eas}reqﬂwa%eﬂfs— The Company maintains its cash accounts with various Jea-1=1ks-global

institutions and has not experienced any losses in such accounts . The Company performs periodic evaluations of the
relative credit standing of its financial institutions and monitors the amount of exposure . Accounts Receivable, Net and
Concentration of Credit Risk Accounts receivable include amounts billed and currently due from customers. The amounts due
are stated at their estimated net realizable value. The Company maintains an allowance for deubtful-aceotnts-credit losses for
estimated losses resulting from the inability of its customers to make required payments. The Company uses an expected credit
loss model to estimate the credit losses expected over the life of an exposure (or pool of exposures). The estimate of expected
credit losses considers historical information, current information and reasonable and supportable forecasts, including estimates
of prepayments. Financial instruments with similar risk characteristics are grouped together when estimating expected credit
losses. The Company will write off accounts receivable after reasonable collection efforts have been made and the accounts are
deemed uncollectible. The Company sells to a large number of OEMs and distributors who service the aftermarket. The
Company’ s credit risk associated with accounts receivable is minimized due to its customer base and wide geographic
dispersion. The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers’ financial condition and generally does not
require collateral or charge interest on outstanding amounts. The Company had concentrations of credit risk with no individual
customer greater than 10 % as of March 29, 2025 or March 30, 2024 erAprit5-2623-with the exception of Motion Industries.
Approximately 15 % and 16 %-and=+5-% of accounts receivable at betirMarch 29, 2025 and March 30, 2024 and-Apri;
2623, respectively, were attributable to Motion Industries. Inventory is stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is
determined by the first- in, first- out method. The Company accounts for inventory under a full absorption method, and records
adjustments to the value of inventory based upon past sales history and forecasted plans to sell our inventories. The physical
condition, including age and quality, of the inventories is also considered in establishing its valuation. These adjustments are
estimates, which could vary significantly, either favorably or unfavorably, from actual requirements if future economic
conditions, customer inventory levels or competitive conditions differ from our expectations. Contract Assets (Unbilled
Receivables) Pursuant to the over- time revenue recognition model, revenue may be recognized prior to the customer being
invoiced. An unbilled receivable is recorded to reflect revenue that is recognized when (1) the cost- to- cost method is applied
and (2) such revenue exceeds the amount invoiced to the customer. Contract assets are included within prepaid expenses and
other current assets or other noncurrent assets on the consolidated balance sheets. Property, Plant and Equipment Property, plant
and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation and amortization of property, plant and equipment, is recorded using the
straight- line method over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets. Depreciation of assets is reported within
depreciation and amortization. Expenditures for normal maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. The
estimated useful lives of the Company’ s property, plant and equipment are as follows: Buildings and improvements 20- 30
years Machinery and equipment 3- 15 years Leasehold improvements Shorter of the term of lease or estimated useful lifeLeases



The Company determines if an arrangement is a lease at contract inception. For leases where the Company is the lessee, it
recognizes lease assets and related lease liabilities at the lease commencement date based on the present value of lease payments
over the lease term. The lease term is the noncancellable period for which a lessee has the right to use an underlying asset,
including periods covered by an option to extend the lease if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option and periods
covered by an option to terminate the lease if the lessee is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. For renewal options, the
Company performs an assessment at commencement if it is reasonably likely to exercise the option. The assessment is based on
the Company s intentions, past practlces estrmates and factors that create an economic 1ncentrve for the Company Geﬂefal-l-y—

-leased—maﬂu-faefufmg—faerlﬂ-tes—Whrle some of the Company s leases 1nclude optlons allowmg early termlnatron of the lease
the Company historically has not terminated its lease agreements early unless there is an economic, financial or business reason
to do so; therefore, the Company does not typically consider the termination option in its lease term at commencement. The
Company must classify each lease as a finance lease or an operating lease. The Company’ s finance leases are included in
property, plant and equipment, net. Amortization of these assets is included in depreciation and amortization expense. The
Company’ s operating leases consist of rent commitments under various leases for office space, warehouses, land and buildings.
Most of the Company’ s leases do not provide an implicit interest rate. As a result, the Company uses its incremental borrowing
rate based on the information available at the commencement date in determining the present value of lease payments.
Subsequent to the initial measurement, the lease liability continues to be measured at the present value of unpaid lease payments
throughout the lease term. The lease liability is remeasured if the lease is modified and the modification is not accounted for as
a separate contract, there is a change in the assessment of the lease term, the assessment of a purchase option exercise or the
amount probable of being owed under a residual value guarantee, or a contingency is resolved resulting in some or all of the
variable lease payments becoming fixed payments. Subsequent to the initial measurement, the right- of- use asset for a finance
lease is equivalent to the initial measurement less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses. Generally,
amortization of finance leases is recorded to cost of sales or SG & A on a straight- line basis over the lease term. Subsequent to
initial measurement, the right- of- use asset for an operating lease is equivalent to initial measurement less accumulated
amortization. Goodwill and Indefinite- Lived Intangible Assets Goodwill (representing the excess of the amount paid to acquire
a company over the estimated fair value of the net assets acquired) and indefinite- lived intangible assets are not amortized but
instead are tested for impairment annually, or when events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value of such asset may
not be recoverable. Separate tests are performed for goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets. The Company performs
the annual impairment testing during the fourth quarter of each fiscal year. We completed a quantitative test of impairment
on the indefinite lived intangible assets with no impairment noted in fiscal year 2624-2025 . The determination of any goodwill
impairment is made at the reporting unit level. The Company determines the fair value of a reporting unit and compares it to its
carrying amount. If the carrying amount of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value, an impairment loss is recognized for any-the
amount by which the carrying amount exceeds the reporting unit’ s fair value. The Company applies the income approach
(discounted cash flow method) in testing goodwill for 1mpa1rment The key assu:m-pﬁoﬂs» assumptlon used in the dlscounted
cash flow method used to est1mate fair value is gross d

a-ppfoxtmatelyé%%%—The farr value of the reportmg units exceeds the carrying Value by a minimum of -1-8—13 8 % at each of
the two reporting units . Assuming no growth in gross margin within the model would not result in impairment of
goodwill for any of our reporting units. Although no changes are expected, if the actual results of the Company are less
favorable than the assumptions the Company makes regarding estimated cash flows, the Company may be required to
record an impairment charge in the future . Contract Liabilities (Deferred Revenue) The Company may receive a customer
advance or deposit prior to revenue being recognized. Since the performance obligations related to such advances may not have
been satisfied, a contract liability is established. Contract liabilities are included within accrued expenses and other current
liabilities or other noncurrent liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets until the respective revenue is recognized. Advance
payments are not considered a significant financing component as the timing of the transfer of the related goods or services is at
the discretion of the customer. Ineeme—Faxes-The Company accounts for income taxes using the liability method, which
requires it to recognize a current tax liability or asset for current taxes payable or refundable and a deferred tax liability or asset
for the estimated future tax effects of temporary differences between the financial statement and tax reporting bases of assets
and liabilities to the extent that they are realizable. Deferred tax expense (benefit) results from the net change in deferred tax
assets and liabilities during the year. A valuation allowance is recorded to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount that is more
likely than not to be realized. The Company is exposed to certain tax contingencies in the ordinary course of business and
records those tax liabilities in accordance with the guidance for accounting for uncertain tax positions. Temporary differences
relate primarily to the timing of deductions for depreciation, stock- based compensation, goodwill amortization relating to the
acquisition of operating divisions, amortization of intangible assets, basis differences arising from acquisition accounting,
pension and retirement benefits, and various accrued and prepaid expenses. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recorded at the



rates expected to be in effect when the temporary differences are expected to reverse. GlebalMintmam—FasxIn October 2021,
the OECD announced an Inclusive Framework on Base Erosion and Profit Shifting including Pillar Two Model Rules defining
the global minimum tax, which calls for the taxation of large multinational corporations at a minimum rate of 15 %.
Subsequently multiple sets of administrative guidance have been issued. Many non- US tax jurisdictions have either recently
enacted legislation to adopt certain components of the Pillar Two Model Rules beginning in 2024 with the adoption of additional
components in later years or announced their plans to enact legislation in future years . The Company has performed an
assessment of the potential impact to its income taxes as a result of Pillar Two. Based on the results of the assessment, the
Company believes that it can avail itself of the transitional safe harbor rules in all jurisdictions in which the Company
operates. We will continue to monitor both the U. S. and international legislative developments related to Pillar Two to
assess for any potential impacts . We are continuing to evaluate the impacts of enacted legislation and pending legislation to
enact Pillar Two Model Rules in the non- US tax jurisdictions in which we operate. Net Income Per Share Attributable to
Common Stockholders Basic net income per share attributable to common stockholders is computed by dividing net income
attributable to common stockholders by the weighted- average number of common shares outstanding. Diluted net income per
share attributable to common stockholders is computed by dividing net income attributable to common stockholders by the sum
of the weighted- average number of common shares and dilutive common share equivalents then outstanding using the treasury
stock method. Common share equivalents consist of the incremental common shares issuable upon the exercise of stock options
, the vesting of restricted shares, contingently issuable shares related to performance- based awards and the conversion of
MCPS (i. e., our outstanding preferred stock) to common shares. We exclude outstanding stock options, stock awards,
contingently issuable shares related to performance- based awards and the MCPS from the calculations if the effect would
be anti- dilutive. The dilutive effect of the MCPS is calculated using the if- converted method. The if- converted method
assumes that these securities were converted to shares of common stock at the beginning of the reporting period to the extent
that the effect is dilutive. If the effect is anti- dilutive, we calculate net income per share attributable to common stockholders by
adjusting net income in the numerator for the effect of the cumulative MCPS dividends for the respective period. The
Company issued 2, 029, 955 shares of common stock upon the conversion of the MCPS. Because the MCPS is no longer
outstanding, the Company will not pay dividends on the MCPS in the future. This will amount to a cash savings of $ 23. 0
per year. For the fiscal years ended March 29, 2025, March 30, 2024 and April 1, 2023, the effect of assuming the conversion
of the 4, 600, 000 shares of MCPS into shares of common stock was anti- dilutive, and therefore excluded from the calculation
of diluted earnings per share attributable to common stockholders. Accordingly, net income was reduced by cumulative MCPS
dividends, as presented in our consolidated statement of operations, for purposes of calculating net income attributable to
common stockholders. For the fiscal year ended March 29, 2025, 55, 449 employee stock options and 130 restricted shares
were excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per share attributable to common stockholders. For the fiscal
year ended March 30, 2024, 120, 954 employee stock options and 250 restricted shares were excluded from the calculation of
diluted earnings per share attrlbutable to common stockholders At Fer—t-he—ﬁsea-l—ye&r—eﬂded—Aprll 1,2023, 110 368 employee
stock optlons and 1, 185 estrieted 3 h e ;

calculation of dlluted earnlngs per share attrlbutable to common stockholders. The inclusion of these employee stock options
and restricted shares would have been anti- dilutive. The table below reflects the calculation of weighted- average shares
outstanding for each period presented as well as the computation of basic and diluted net income per share attributable to
common stockholders. Fiscal Year Ended March 29, 2025 March 30, 2024 April 1, 2023 Apei2;2022-Net income $ 246.2 $
209.9 § 166 ~7F$54-. 7 Preferred stock dividends 12. 4 23. 0 22. 9 42:-6-Net income attributable to common stockholders $ 233.
8% 186.9 $ 143. 8 $42F Denominator: Denominator for basic net income per share attributable to common stockholders —
weighted- average shares outstanding 30, 136, 501 28, 917, 008 28, 764, 092 26-Effect of dilution due to contingently issuable
shares related to performance- based awards 11 , 946;-355-564 — — Effect of dilution due to employee stock awards 206,
405 272, 048 308, 337 364;-674-Denominator for diluted net income per share attributable to common stockholders —
weighted- average shares outstanding 30, 354, 470 29, 189, 056 29, 072, 429 2%4-3H5629-Basic net income per share
attributable to common stockholders $ 7. 76 $ 6. 47 § 5. 00 $+-58Diluted net income per share attributable to common
stockholders $ 7. 70 $ 6. 41 $ 4. 94 $34—56-Impairment of Long- Lived Assets The Company assesses the net realizable value of
its long- lived assets and evaluates such assets for impairment whenever indicators of impairment are present. For amortizable
long- lived assets to be held and used, if indicators of impairment are present, management determines whether the sum of the
estimated undiscounted future cash flows is less than the carrying amount. The amount of asset impairment, if any, is based on
the excess of the carrying amount over its fair value, which is estimated based on projected discounted future operating cash
flows using a discount rate reflecting the Company’ s average cost of funds. During fiscal year 2624-2025 , impairment charges
related to maehinery-and-equipmentand-certain patents and trademarks totaling $ 2-0 . 5 were recorded based on our internal
assessments performed. Long- lived assets to be disposed of by sale or other means are reported at the lower of carrying amount
or fair value, less costs to sell. Foreign Currency Translation and Transactions Assets and liabilities of the Company” s foreign
operations are translated into U. S. dollars using the exchange rate in effect at the balance sheet date. Results of operations are
translated using the average exchange rate prevailing throughout the period. The effects of exchange rate fluctuations on
translating foreign currency assets and liabilities from their functional currencies to the reporting currency are included in
accumulated other comprehensive income / (loss), while gains and losses resulting from foreign currency transactions are
included in other non- operating expense (income). Research and Development Costs are incurred in connection with efforts
aimed at discovering and implementing new knowledge that is critical to developing new products, processes or services,
significantly improving existing products or services, and developing new applications for existing products and services.
Research and development costs for the creation of new and improved products, processes and services were approximately $



33.0,%$33.0and $ 31. 8 and-$27-6-, for fiscal years 2025, 2024 ;and 2023 and-2022- respectively. Fair Value Measurements
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date (exit price). Inputs used to measure fair value are within a hierarchy consisting of
three levels. Level 1 inputs represent unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. Level 2 inputs
represent unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for similar assets or liabilities, or unadjusted quoted prices for identical or
similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, or inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or
liability. Level 3 inputs represent unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. Financial assets and liabilities are classified in
their entirety based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The earrying-ameountsreported
irthe-balanee-sheet-for-Company’ s financial instruments consist primarily of cash and-easheguivalents-, accounts
receivable, trade accounts payable , short- term borrowings, long- term debt, and derivatives in the form of and- an
aeertals-interest rate swap and ether-a cross eurrent-currency tabitities-approximate-swap. Due to their short- term nature,
the carrying value of cash, accounts receivable, trade accounts payable, accrued expenses and short- term borrowings
are a reasonable estimate of their fair value . Long due-te-theirshort- term nature-assets held on our balance sheets related
to benefit plan obllgatlons are measured at falr value The e&&ymg—ameuﬂfs-falr value of the Company’ s long- term fixed-

ates— rate debtwhteh—v&ry—rﬂ

based on quoted mcnket prices , (ebsewab-}e—mpttts-)-aﬁd-e{asstﬁed-as—was -I:evel—$ 470 5 and $ 456. 8
at March 29, 2025 and March 30, 2024, respectively. The carrying value of this debt was $ 495. | ofthe-fair-value

hierarely-at March 29, 2025 and $ 494. 2 at March 30, 2024 . The fair value of the-interestlong- term fixed- ratc swap-debt
was measured using Level 1 inputs. Due to the nature of fair value calculations for variable- rate debt, the carrying value
of the Company’ s long- term variable- rate debt is a reasonable estimate of its fair value. The fair value of the Interest
Rate Swap was $ (0. 3) and $ 1. 6 at March 29, 2025 and March 30, 2024, respectively, and was measured using Level 2
inputs. This amount is included in accrued expenses and other current liabilities on the Company’ s consolidated balance
sheets. The Interest Rate Swap, net of taxes, had accumulated other comprehensive loss of $ (0. 2) and accumulated other
comprehensive income of $ 1. 2 as of March 29, 2025 and March 30, 2024 and was included in accumulated other
comprehensive income / (loss) on the Company’ s consolidated balance sheets, and in the Company’ s consolidated
statements of comprehensive income / (loss). The fair value of the Cross Currency Swap was $ (0. 2) at March 29, 2025,
and was measured using Level 2 inputs. This amount is included in other noncurrent liabilities on the Company > s
consolidated balance sheets. The Cross Currency fair-valae-ofthe-interestrate-swap-Swap remaining-, net of taxes, had
accumulated other comprehensive loss of $ (0. 2) as of March 29, 2025, and was included in accumulated other
comprehensive income / (loss) on the Company’ s consolidated balance sheets , ret-and in the Company’ s consolidated
statements of taxes;was-$—+-comprehensive income / (loss) . 2The Company does not believe it as-has significant
concentrations of Mareh36;20624-risk associated with the counterparties to its financial instruments . Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income / (Loss) The components of comprehensive income / (loss) that relate to the Company are net income,
foreign currency translation adjustments , changes in the fair value of derivatives and pension plan and postretirement
benefits, all of which are presented in the consolidated statements of stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income / (1oss).
The following summarizes the activity within each component of accumulated other comprehensive income / (loss), net of
taxes: Currency Translation Change in Fair Value of Detivatives-Interest Rate Swap Change in Fair Value of Cross
Currency Swap Pension and Postretirement Liability Total Balance at Apri-March 30,2024 $ (3. 6) $ | ;202354 6)$2 -
23$2—83.18%0. 7$4—Reclassification to net income — 2. 0 — — 2. 0 Change in pension and postretirement liability
— ——12.4-2 —.42Net loss on foreign currency translation4+(2 . 6-9) — — +— (2 . O-Amortization-of9) Loss on
Interest Rate Swap, net g&m—net—of faaetaxes — (3 e*peﬂse—ef—$—9— 4 ) ——@3. 4) Loss on Cross Currency Swap, net of
taxes — — (0. 42) — (0. 2 4-Gain-o menth € - —8-) Net current period
other comprehensive income (2. 9) (1. 4) ( () -3— 2) 2.46(2. 1) 4—4—8—Bdldnce at March -39—29 %924—2025 $(3-6.5)5(0.2)
$(0.2)$5.58 (1. 4)2$33-$06-FStock- Based Compensation The Company recognizes stock- based compensation cost
relating to all stock- based payment transactions in the financial statements based upon the grant- date fair value of the
instruments issued over the requisite service period. The fair value of each option grant was estimated on the date of grant using
the Black- Scholes pricing model. The Company estimates expected forfeitures at the grant date and recognizes stock- based
compensation costs, accordingly. The Company also recognizes stock- based compensation cost relating to restricted stock
awards that are earned by employees prior to being granted as liability awards. Reeent-AeeountingPronouneements-n
November 2023, Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2023- 07,
Segment Reporting (Topic 280): Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures. The amendments in ASU 2023- 07 improve
the disclosures about a public entity’ s reportable segments and address requests from investors for additional, more detailed
information about a reportable segment’ s expenses. Following the release of ASU 2023- 07 in November 2023, the effective
date will be annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2624-2023 . As of March 36-29 , 2624-202S , the Company
is-evatuating-has updated our segment disclosure to comply with the 1mpaet—efrﬁs—eeﬁsehéafed—ﬁﬂanetal—sfateﬁm&s-updated
requirements. Refer to “ Note 19: Reportable Segments > for additional information . In December 2023, the FASB issued
ASU 2023- 09, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures. The amendments in ASU 2023- 09
address investor requests for more transparency about income tax information through improvements to income tax disclosures
primarily related to the rate reconciliation and income taxes paid information. FeHewing-the-release-ef-ASU 2023- 09 is i
Beeember2623-the-cffective for date-wil-be-annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2024. As-efMareh36;
We are currently evaluating the impact the standard will have on our consolidated financial statements. In November




2024, the CompanyFASB issued ASU 2024- 03, Disaggregation of Income Statement Expenses (DISE). The new standard
requires disclosure of specific types of expenses included in the expense captions presented on the face of the income
statement as well as disclosures about selling expenses. ASU 2024- 03 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning
after December 15, 2026, and interim reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2027. We are currently cvaluating
the impact the standard will have on #s-our consolidated financial statements. Other new pronouncements issued but not
effective until after March 36-29 , 2824-2025 are not expected to have a material impact on our financial position, results of
operations or liquidity. 3. Revenue from Contracts with Customers Disaggregation of Revenue The following table
disaggregates total revenue by end market which is how we view our reportable segments (see Note 26-19 ): Fiscal Year Ended
March 29, 2025 March 30, 2024 April 1, 2023 Aprit2;2622-Acrospace / Defense $ 592. 8 $ 519. 4 § 430. 3 $38+"5-Industrial
1,043.51,040.91,039. 056+4-51,636.3 $ 1, 560. 3 § 1, 469. 3 $942-9-The following table disaggregates total revenue by
geographic origin: Fiscal Year Ended March 29, 2025 March 30, 2024 April 1, Apri-2;2622-2023 United States $ 1,449.7 $
1,375.4 8 1,292. 9 $833—4-International 186. 6 184. 9 176. 4 +09-5-5 1,636.3 $1,560. 3 $ 1, 469. 3 $942-9-The following
table illustrates the approximate percentage of revenue recognized for performance obligations satisfied over time versus the
amount of revenue recognized for performance obligations satisfied at a point in time: Fiscal Year Ended March 29, 2025
March 30, 2024 April 1, 2023 Apri2;2622-Point- in- time 98 % 98 % 9798 % Over time 2 % 2 % 3-2 % 100 % 100 % 100 %
Remaining Performance Obligations Remaining performance obligations represent the transaction price of orders meeting the
definition of a contract in the new revenue standard for which work has not been performed or has been partially performed and
excludes unexercised contract options. The duration of the majority of our contracts, as defined by ASC Topic 606, is less than
one year. The Company has elected to apply the practical expedient, which allows companies to exclude remaining performance
obligations with an original expected duration of one year or less. The aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to
remaining performance obligations for such contracts with a duration of more than one year was approximately § 464-542 . 4-2
at March 36-29 , 2024-2025 . The Company expects to recognize revenue on approximately 62-65 % and 92-89 % of the
remaining performance obligations over the next 12 and 24 months, respectively, with the remainder recognized thereafter.
Contract Balances The timing of revenue recognition, invoicing and cash collections affect accounts receivable, unbilled
receivables (contract assets) and customer advances and deposits (contract liabilities) on the consolidated balance sheets. These
assets and liabilities are reported on the consolidated balance sheets on an individual contract basis at the end of each reporting
period. Contract Assets (Unbilled Receivables)- Pursuant to the over- time revenue recognition model, revenue may be
recognized prior to the customer being invoiced. An unbilled receivable is recorded to reflect revenue that is recognized when
(1) the cost- to- cost method is applied and (2) such revenue exceeds the amount invoiced to the customer. As of March 29,
2025 and March 30, 2024 and-Ape45;2623- current contract assets were $ 6. 6 and $ 6. 9 and-$4-5-, respectively, and
included within prepaid expenses and other current assets on the consolidated balance sheets. The trerease-decrease in contract
assets was primarily due to amounts billed to customers during the period partlally offset by the recognition of revenue

related to the satisfaction or partial satisfaction of performance obligations prior to billing partiay-offsetby-amounts-billed-to
eustomers-during-the-pertod-. As of March 29, 2025 and March 30, 2024 and-Apri45;2623-, the Company did not have any

contract assets classified as noncurrent on the consolidated balance sheets. Contract Liabilities (Deferred Revenue)- The
Company may receive a customer advance or deposit, or have an unconditional right to receive a customer advance, prior to
revenue being recognized. Since the performance obligations related to such advances may not have been satisfied, a contract
liability is established. Advance payments are not considered a significant financing component as the timing of the transfer of
the related goods or services is at the discretion of the customer. As of March 29, 2025 and March 30, 2024 and-Apri-52623-,
current contract liabilities were $ 32, 7 and $ 22. 5 and-$20-6-, respectively, and included within accrued expenses and other
current liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets. The increase in current contract liabilities was primarily due to advance
payments received and the reclassification of a portion of advance payments received from the noncurrent portion of contract
liabilities partially offset by revenue recognized on customer contracts. For the year ended March 36-29 , 2624-202S , the
Company recognized revenues of $ +6-18 . 4-1 that were included in the contract liability balance as of Apri+-March 30 , 2623
2024 . For the year ended Aprit+-March 30 , 2623-2024 , the Company recognized revenues of $ 43-16 . +4 that were included
in the contract liability balance at April 2-1 , 2622-2023 . As of March 29, 2025 and March 30, 2024 and-Apri-52623-,
noncurrent contract liabilities were $ 12. 1 and $ 19. 9 and-$49-8-, respectively, and included within other noncurrent liabilities
on the consolidated balance sheets. The trerease-decrease in noncurrent contract liabilities was primarily due to the
reclassification of a portion of advance payments received to the current portion of contract liabilities partially offset by
noncurrent thereelassifieationofa-portion-of-advance payments received to-the-eurrentportiorrefeontraettiabilittes-. Variable
Consideration The amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for the goods and services
is not generally subject to significant variations. However, the Company does offer certain customers rebates, prompt payment
discounts, end- user discounts, the right to return eligible products, and / or other forms of variable consideration. The Company
estimates this variable consideration using the expected value amount, which is based on historical experience. The Company
includes estimated amounts in the transaction price to the extent it is probable that a significant reversal of cumulative revenue
recognized will not occur when the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is resolved. The Company adjusts the
estimate of revenue at the earlier of when the amount of consideration the Company expects to receive changes or when the
consideration becomes fixed. Accrued customer rebates were $ 40. 0 and $ 38. 0 and-$39—6-at March 29, 2025 and March 30,
2024 and-Apri-52023-, respectively, and are included within accrued expenses and other current liabilities on the consolidated
balance sheets. 4. Fair Value Fair value is defined as the price that would be expected to be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date (exit price). The FASB
provides accounting rules that classify the inputs used to measure fair value into the following hierarchy: Level 1 — Unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. Level 2 — Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for similar



assets or liabilities, or unadjusted quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, or inputs
other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability. Level 3 — Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
Financial assets and liabilities are classified in their entirety based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value
measurement. As a result of the occurrence of triggering events such as purchase accounting for acquisitions, the Company
measures certain assets dnd liabilities based on Level 3 1nputs Recurring Fdll Value Measurements The-Company—s-finanetat

0 v e ; straments—>. Allowance for Beﬂbt—fu-l—ﬁceeeuﬂfs-Credlt Losses The activity
in the allov& yance for deubt—fu-l—aeeeﬂﬂts—credlt losses consists of the following: Fiscal Year Ended Balance at Beginning of Year
Additions Other * Write- offs Balance at End of Year March 29,2025$4.4$1.28(0.1) $(0.1) $ 5.4 March 30, 2024 § 3.7
$0.280.58—$4.4 April 1,2023$2.750.8$0.48(0.2)$ 3 FAprit2;2022- 5185 +45-OH-$0O0-4H$2. 7 *
Foreign currency, price dlscmpdnaes customer returns, disposition and acquisition transactions. 6. Inventory The major
classes of Inventertes-inventories are summarized below: March 29, 2025 March 30, 2024 ApritH52023-Raw materials $438
and work in process 30 . 54328 % 28 . 4 % Woercinproeess137-9432-5-Finished goods and components 69 346-—8322-
3-$622-8$587-2 % 71. 6 % 100. 0 % 100. 0 % 7. Property, Plant and Equipment Property, plant and equipment consist of
the following: March 29, 2025 March 30, 2024 Aprit52623-Land $ 2527 . 24 § 25. 2 Buildings and improvements 187. 4
175. 0 +74-Machinery and equipment 523 . 3 Maehinery-and-eguipment497. 8§ 472-738 . &1 698. 0 672-3-Less: accumulated
depreciation (379. 1) (337. 0) €2978$ 359 . 05 361. 0 $3753-Depreciation expense was $ 48. 2, $48. 9 -and $ 46. 2 and-$
36-8-for the fiscal years ended March 29, 2025, March 30, 2024, and April 1, 2023, and-Aprit2;2022-respectively. Of
FinaneeLeasesFor-the-these amounts year-ended-Mareh30-, 2024;-5 516 . 8 ef—assets— $6.3 and $ 5. 1 were included i
buﬁd-mgs—wnhm sellmg, general and tm-pfe’v‘eﬁtems—aﬁd—$—7—9-admmlstratlve expenses on the consolidated statements of

-$—4—9—$—4J.)—aﬂd—$—1—3—fer—t-he—yedrs ended Mcuch 29 2025 March 30 2024 and Apr11 1, 2023 aﬂd—A—pﬂ-l%@Q%— respeutl\ ely
sandis-. The remainder was included within depfeeta-ﬁefre*peﬂse—as—rﬂeﬂ&eﬂed—abei%cost of sales on the consolidated
statements of operations . 8. Lcases The Company enters into leases for manufacturing facilities, warehouses, sales offices,
information technology equipment, plant equipment, vehicles and certain other equipment with varying end dates from April
2024-2025 to March 2043, including renewal options. The following table represents the impact of leasing on the consolidated
balance sheets : Assets : Balance Sheet Classification March 29, 2025 March 30, 2024 Aprit52623-Assets-Operating lease
assets yaet-Operating lease assets 7ret-$ 4458 . 4-6 § 41. 4 Finance lease right of use assets, net Property, plant and equipment,
net 45. 3 49. 4 52.2-Total leased assets, net $ 103. 9 $ 90. 8 $93—6-Liabilities: Current operating lease liabilities Current
operating lease liabilities $ 9.2 $§ 7. 0 $F-6-Current finance lease liabilities Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 5. 9 5.
7 5—2-Noncurrent operating lease liabilities Noncurrent operating lease liabilities 5§0. 3 35. 3 33—9-Noncurrent finance lease
liabilities Other noncurrent liabilities 43. 4 46. 7 48—5-Total lease liabilities $ 108. 8 $ 94. 7 For the year ended March 29,
2025, $ 95-51. 8 of assets included in buildings and improvements and $ 8. 8 of assets included in machinery and
equipment were accounted for as finance leases. For the year ended March 30, 2024, § 51. 8 of assets included in
buildings and improvements and $ 7. 9 of assets included in machinery and equipment were accounted for as finance
leases. At March 29, 2025 and March 30, 2024, the Company had accumulated amortization of $ 15.3 and $ 10. 3
associated with these assets, respectively. Amortization expense associated with these finance leases was $5.2,$4.9
and $ 4. S for the years ended March 29, 2025, March 30, 2024 and April 1, 2023, respectively, and is included within
depreciation expense disclosed in Note 7. Cash paid associated with operating lease liabilities was $ 9. 0 and $ 8. | and-$8-"5
for the fiscal years ended March 29, 2025 and March 30, 2024 and-Apri-52623-, respectively, all of which were included
within the operating cash flow section of the consolidated statements of cash flows. Lease assets obtained in exchange for new
operating lease liabilities were $ 24. 4 and $ 1. 7 and-$2-0-for the fiscal years ended March 29, 2025 and March 30, 2024 and
ApriH52623-, respectively. Lease modifications which resulted in newly obtained lease assets in exchange for new operating
lease liabilities were $ 0. 8 and $ 5. 4 and-$3—for the fiscal years ended March 29, 2025 and March 30, 2024 and-Apritis
2023~ respectively. Cash paid associated with finance lease liabilities was $ 6. 0 and $ 5. 3 and-$-58-for the fiscal years ended
March 29, 2025 and March 30, 2024 and-Apri-H52023-, respectively. Of these amounts, $ 4. 1 and $ 3. 6 and-$3-2-were
included within the financing cash flow section of the consolidated statements of cash flows for the fiscal years ended March 29,



2025 and March 30, 2024 and-Aprit-, respectively. $ | ;2623 respeetively-. 7 $+8-and $ 1. 8 of these cash payments were
included within the operating cash flow section of the consolidated statements of cash flows for the fiscal years ended March 29,
2025 and March 30, 2024 and-ApriH52623-, respectively. Lease assets obtained in exchange for new finance lease liabilities
were $ 1.3 and $ 2. 3 and-$-4—0-for the fiscal years ended March 29, 2025 and March 30, 2024 and-Apei15;2623-,
respectively. Lease modifications which resulted in reductions of lease assets in exchange for reductions of finance lease
liabilities were § 0. 0 and $ 0. 40 for the fiscal years ended March 29, 2025 and March 30, 2024 and-Apri52623-,
respectively. Total operating lease expense was $ 10. 4, $ 10. 1 ;-and $ 9. 9 and-$-8-3-for the fiscal years ended March 29,
2025, March 30, 2024 ;-and April 1, 2023 and-Aprit2,2622-, respectively. Short- term and variable lease expense-expenses
were immaterial. Total finance lease expense was § 7. 0 for the fiscal year ended March 29, 2025, of which, $ 5. 3 was
related to amortization expense of finance lease assets and $ 1. 7 was related to interest expense. Total finance lease
expense was $ 6. 7 for the fiscal year ended March 30, 2024, of which, $ 5. 0 was related to amortization expense of finance
lease assets and § 1. 7 was related to interest expense. Total finance lease expense was $ 6. 4 for the fiscal year ended April 1,
2023, of which, $ 4. 5 was related to amortization expense of finance lease assets and $ 1. 9 was related to interest expense.
Variable lease expense was immaterial for each of the last three fiscal years . Future undiscounted lease payments for the
remaining lease terms as of March 36-29 , 2624-2025 , including renewal options reasonably certain of being exercised, are as
follows: Operating Leases Finance Leases Within one year $ 79 . +3 $ 5-6 . -0 One to two years €9 . 4 5 . 5 —+Two to three
years 67 . 553 4 . +7 Three to four years 5.9 4. 0 74—4-Four to five years 3-5 . § 4 3. 9-2 Thereafter 2542 . +4+-8 37 . 65
Total future undiscounted lease payments 53-80 . 3-66-2 61 . 5-9 Less: imputed interest (+H-20 . 6-7 ) (#4412 . +6 ) Total lease
liabilities $ 42-59. 5 $ 49 . 3 $524-The weighted- average remaining lease term on March 368-29 , 2024-2025 for our operating
leases is +6-11 . 2-6 years. The weighted- average discount rate on March 36-29 , 2624-2025 for our operating leases is 5. 78 %.
The weighted- average remaining lease term on March 36-29 , 2624-202S for our finance leases is +4-13 . 3-5 years. The
Welghted averaée dlscount rate on Malch %9—29 %9%4—2025 for our hnance leases is3.5 % 9 —S-pee-l-lﬂe—Aeqﬂ-tSﬂ-te-l‘l—@ﬂ-

segment, consm of the following: Aerospace / Defense Industrnl Total Apr11 H92—2—$—1-94—1—$—1—7-98—9—$—1—992—1—Aeqtﬁsﬂ16ﬂ
H—28H28 D Franslationadjustments— 3636 Apri-1, 2023 $ 194. 1 § 1, 675. 7§ 1, 869. 8 Acquisition (21 ) 5. 1
— 5. 1 Translation adjustments — (0. 0) (0. 0) March 30 2024 $199.2 $ 1, 675 7 $ 1 874.9 Translatlon adjustments — (2.
7) (2. 7) March 29,2025 $ 199.2 § | , 673 yPurchase strer 3 ed-with e€H o al- 0
$1,872.2 (1) Goodwill associated Wlth the acqumtlon of Spechne Inc —diseussed—fuft-her—m—Nefe—} The table below
summarizes the net book value and weighted average useful lives of our intangible assets. Weighted March 29, 2025 March 30,
2024 Apri52023-Average Useful Lives (Years) Gross Carrying Amount Accumulated Amortization Gross Carrying Amount
Accumulated Amortization Product approvals $ 50. 7 $ 22.2 $50. 7 $ 20. 3 $50-7$384-Customer relationships and lists 1,

301. 0 215.1 1, 300. 7 160. 7 45293—F+66—-5-Trade names 217. 2 41. 8 217. 2 32. 5 2454-23—3-Patents and trademarks 10. 0 6.
510. 8 6. 543—4+2-Domain names 0. 4 0. 4 0. 4 0. 4 Internal- use software 21.7 14.5 16. 7 8. 8 +5-24—4-Other 1.6 1.3 1. 6
1.31,602.46301.8 1,598. 1230. 54589-94+61+-3-Non- amortizable repair station certificationsn/a24.3 — 24,3 —
Total $ 1,626.9 $301.8$1,622. 4§ 230. 5 $4-6442$36+3-Amortization expense for definite- lived intangible assets

during fiscal years 2025, 2024 ;and 2023 and-2022-was $ 71. 8, $ 70. 4 ;-and $ 69. | and-$347F- respectively . During fiscal
year 2025, impairment charges related certain patents and trademarks totaling $ 0. 5 were recorded based on our
internal assessments performed. These charges were recorded at Corporate . Estimated amortization expense for the five
succeeding fiscal years and thereafter is as follows: 2025-$76-7-2026 678 69 . 82 2027 66. 40 2028 65. 3-2 2029 63-64 . 9-4
2030 64. 4 2031 and thereafter 971 +5-033-. §1++-6 10 . Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities The significant
components of accrued expenses and other current liabilities are as follows: March 29, 2025 March 30, 2024 Apri;2023
Employee compensation and related benefits $ 45.2 $ 35 -7$34-. 7 Taxes 11. 1 23. 1 +%-5-Contract liabilities 32. 7 22. 5 206
Accrued rebates 40. 0 38. 0 39—6-Workers compensation and insurance 0. § 0. 4 6—8-Aeqtisition-eosts-0—+0-6-Current finance
lease liabilities 5. 9 §. 7 5=2-Accrued preferred stock dividends — 4. 8 Interest 12. 2 10. 4 Legal 2 . 1 1 Hnterest 164166
Anditfees0-. 3 63TFegalt-3+-6-Returns and warranties 9. 4 9. 2 7-5-Fravel-and-expense-eosts4—4+—+0Other 6.9 16. 2 §
166. 0 $ 167. 3 11. 4-84-$1+673-$1453412-Debt Domestie-CreditFaeility-The Credit Agreement, which was entered into in
fiscal 2022, provides the Company with (a) the $ 1, 300. 0 Term Loan, which was used to fund a portion of the purchase price
for the acquisition of Dodge and to pay related fees and expenses, and (b) the $ 500. 0 Revolving Credit Facility. Debt issuance
costs associated with the Credlt Agreement totaled $ 14. 9 and are being amomzed over the life of the Credlt Agreement.




under the Term Loan, $ 5.0 was outstandmg under the Revolvmg Credlt Facnhty and $ 3. 7 of the Revolvrng (1ed1t F acrhty
was berng utlllzed to pr0V1de letterq of credit to secure the Company S obhgatron% relatrng to certain 1n§urance prograrm Fand-$

diseussed-rn—Nete—9— The Company had the ablhty to borrow up to an addltronal $ 47-8—491 3 under the Revolvrng Credit
Facility as of March 36-29 , 2624-2025 . In fiscal 2022, RBCA issued $ 500. 0 aggregate principal amount of Senior Notes. The
net proceeds from the issuance of the Senior Notes were approximately $ 492. 0, after deducting initial purchasers’ discounts
and commissions and offering expenses, and were used to fund a portion of the cash purchase price for the acquisition of Dodge.
The Senior Notes were issued pursuant to the Indenture with Wilmington Trust, National Association, as trustee. The Indenture
contains covenants limiting the ability of the Company to (i) incur additional indebtedness or guarantee indebtedness, (ii)
declare or pay dividends, redeem stock or make other distributions to stockholders, (iii) make investments, (iv) create liens or
use assets as security in other transactions, (v) merge or consolidate, or sell, transfer, lease or dispose of substantially all of its
assets, (vi) enter into transactions with affiliates, and (vii) sell or transfer certain assets. These covenants contain various
exceptions, limitations and quahhcatrom At any time that the Senror Notes are rated 1nve§tment gr"lde Certarn of these
covenants will be quipended —The Notes sharantee rthy-an a A-8-Sen e basts-b

-lé—aﬁd—@eteber—lé—e-ﬁeﬂeh—ye&r— The Senror Notes erl mature on October 15, 2029 The Company may redeem some or all of
the Senror Notes at any time on or after October 15, 2024 at the redemptron prlcei set forth in the Indenture, pluq accrued and

date—|{ the Company 9611@ certain or its assets or experiences qpecrflc krndq of change% in control the Company must offer to
purchase the Senior Notes. FeretgnBeorrowing-Arrangements-1 he Foreign Credit Line provides Schaublin SA with a CHF 5. 0
(approximately $ 5. &5 USD) credit line Wrth Credit Suisse (Swrtzerland) Ltd. to provrde future working capital, if necessary.

As of March 36-29 |, 2024-2025 , $2-2-had 6 0 dit Line-and $ 0. 1 was being utilized to provide
a bank guarantee. Fees associated with the Forergn Credrt Line are nommal The balances payable under all borrowing facilities
are as follows: March 29, 2025 March 30, 2024 ApriHH52023-Revolver and term loan facilities $ 418. 0 $ 695. 2 $-966-6
Senior notes 500. 0 500. 0 Debt issuance cost ( 8. 3) (10. 7) 43-Other 10 . 4 7 3-Other7. 4 §—FTotal debt 920. 11, 191. 945
395-0-1 ess: current portion 1. 7 3. 8 +5-Long- term debt $ 918.4 § 1, 188. 1 12 $4;393--543- Derivative Financial
Instruments The Company is exposed to certain risks relating to its ongoing business operations, including market risks relating
to fluctuations in interest rates and foreign exchange rates. Derivative financial instruments are recognized on the consolidated
balance sheets as either assets or liabilities and are measured at fair value. Changes in the fair values of derivatives are recorded
each period in earnings or accumulated other comprehensive income / (loss) , depending on whether a derivative is effective as
part of a hedged transaction. Gains and losses on derivative instruments reported in accumulated other comprehensive income /
(loss) are subsequently included in earnings in the periods in which earnings are affected by the hedged item. The Company
does not use derivative instruments for speculative purposes. In fiscal 2023, the Company entered into the three- year HSB-U.
S. dollar - denominated Interest Rate Swap with a third- party financial counterparty under the Credit Agreement (see Note +2
11 ). The Interest Rate Swap was executed to protect the Company from interest rate volatility on our variable- rate Term Loan
Faetlit—. The Interest Rate Swap became effective December 30, 2022 and is comprised of a $ 600. 0 notional with a maturity
of three years. The notional is $ 486-100 . 0 as of March 368-29 , 2824-2025 . We receive a variable rate based on one- month
Term SOFR and pay a fixed rate of 4. 455 %. As of March 36-29 , 2024-2025 , after given effect to the Interest Rate Swap,
approximately #5-66 % of our debt bore interest at a fixed rate after giving effect to the interest-Interest rate-Rate swap-Swap



agreementinplaee-. The notional on the Interest Rate Swap will amortize as follows: ¥ear++-$-600-0-Year2:-$-400—-0-Year3:
$1060-0-The Interest Rate Swap has been designated as a cash flow hedge of the variability of the first unhedged interest
payments (the hedged transactions) paid over the hedging relationship’ s specified time period of three years attributable to the
borrowing’ s contractually specified interest index on the hedged principal of its general borrowing program or replacement or
refinancing thereof. The fair value of the Interest Rate Swap has been disclosed in Note 4. The accumulated other
comprehensive income derivative component balance, net of taxes, was a $ (0. 2) loss and a $ 1. 2 gain and-a-$221essat
March 29, 2025 and March 30, 2024 and-AprHd52023- respectively. The gain / loss reclassified from accumulated other
comprehensive income / (loss) into earnings will be recorded as interest income / expense on the Interest Rate Swap and will
be included in the operating section of the Company’ s consolidated statements of cash flows. +4-On August 12, 2024, the
Company entered into a three- year pay Swiss franc fixed / receive U. S. dollar fixed, Cross Currency Swap with a third-
party financial counterparty. The objective of the Cross Currency Swap is to economically hedge the Company’ s net
investment in its lower- tier European subsidiary, Schaublin, against adverse changes in the Swiss franc / U. S. dollar
exchange rate. The Cross Currency Swap is based upon a net investment of CHF 69. 4 ($ 80. 0 USD) notional amount
with a three- year maturity date. RBC receives a fixed U. S. dollar amount on a month- to- month basis based upon a
fixed annual rate of 2. 77 % of the notional amount. At maturity, RBC will net- settle the principal of the Cross
Currency Swap in cash with the counterparty. The fair value of the Cross Currency Swap has been disclosed in Note 4.
The accumulated other comprehensive income derivative component balance, net of taxes, was a $ (0. 2) loss at March
29, 2025. The gain / loss reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income / (loss) into earnings will be
recorded as interest income / expense on the Cross Currency Swap and will be included in the operating section of the
Company’ s consolidated statements of cash flows. 13 . Other Noncurrent Liabilities The significant components of other
noncurrent liabilities consist of: March 29, 2025 March 30, 2024 Aprit52623-Other postretirement benefits $ 8.1 $ 10. 7 $46-
8-Noncurrent income tax liability 16. 2 14. 1 +4—6-Deferred compensation 27. 4 29. 9 25-—FContract liabilities 12. 1 19. 9 498§
Noncurrent finance lease liabilities 43. 4 46. 7 48-Other 4. 8 3 . 5 Other3-§ 112 . 0 5415 124. 8 14 $422-7145 Employee
Benefit Plans Noncontributory Defined Benefit Pension Plan At March 38-29 , 2824-2025 , the Company had one consolidated
noncontributory defined benefit pension plan (the ““ Plan ) covering current and former union employees in its Heim division
plant in Fairfield, Connecticut, its Precision Products subsidiary plant in Plymouth, Indiana and former union employees of the
Tyson subsidiary in Glasgow, Kentucky and the Nice subsidiary in Kulpsville, Pennsylvania. Plan assets are comprised
primarily of equity and fixed income investments. As of March 29, 2025 and March 30, 2024 and-Apri-;2023-, Plan assets
were $ 9. 4 and $ 9. | and-$8-—F-, respectively. The fair value of the above investments was determined using quoted market
prices of identical instruments. Therefore, the valuation inputs within the fair value hierarchy established by ASC 820 were
classified as Level 1 of the valuation hierarchy. Benefits under the Plan are not a function of employees’ salaries; thus, the
accumulated benefit obligation equals the projected benefit obligation. At March 29, 2025 and March 30, 2024 and-Apris
2023, the projected benefit obligation was $ 3. 7 and $ 3. 8-7 , respectively. The discount rates used in determining the funded
status of the Plan as of March 29, 2025 and March 30, 2024 and-Aprit-45;2623-were 5. 30 % and 5. 00 Y%-and-4—76-"%,
respectively. The funded status of the Plan and the amount recognized in the balance sheet at March 29, 2025 and March 30,
2024 and-Apei-52023-were $ 5. 7 and $ 5. 4 and-$4-9- respectively. These overfunded amounts are included within
noncurrent assets on the consolidated balance sheets. Net periodic benefit cost / (income) of the Plan for fiscal years 2025, 2024
sand 2023 and2622-was $ (0. 1), $ 0. 1 and $ 0. 2 and-$0-0-, respectively. The discount rate used to determine net periodic
benefit cost for fiscal years 2025, 2024 ;and 2023 and-2622-was 5. 00 %, 4. 70 % sand 3. 30 Y%-and2-76-%, respectively.
Foreign Pension Plans Two of the Company’ s foreign operations, Schaublin and Swiss Tool, sponsor pension plans for their
approximately +63-156 and 34-33 employees, respectively, in conformance with Swiss pension law. The Schaublin plan is
funded with an independent semi- autonomous collective provident foundation whereas the Swiss Tool plan is funded with a
reputable Swiss insurer. The unfunded liabilities of these plans at March 29, 2025 and March 30, 2024 and-Apri-were $ 0. |
and ;2023-were-$ 2. 3 and-$1—5-, respectively, and recorded within other noncurrent liabilities on the consolidated balance
sheets. For fiscal 2025, 2024 -and 2023 aad-2622-, net periodic benefit cost for these plans was $2.3,$2.0;and $ 1. 8 and-$
+—F, respectively. 401 (k) Plans The Company has defined contribution plans under Section 401 (k) of the Internal Revenue
Code for all of its employees not covered by a collective bargaining agreement. Employer contributions under this plan, ranging
from 10 %- 100 % of eligible amounts contributed by employees, amounted to $ 9.9, $ 9. 6 ;-and $ 8. 6 and-$4—6-in fiscal
2025, 2024 rand 2023 and2022-, respectively. Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan The Company maintains a non-
qualified Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (“ SERP ”) for a select group of senior management employees. The SERP is
a deferred compensation plan which allows eligible employees to elect to defer up to 75 % of their current salary and up to
100 % of bonus compensation. As of March 29, 2025 and March 30, 2024 and-Aprit4;2623-, the SERP assets were $ 34. 9
and $ 33. 0 and-$28-6-, respectively, of which, $ 2. 0 and areineluded-within-$ 0. 0 were classified as other current assets on
the consolidated balance sheets, respectively, while the remainder was recorded in other noncurrent assets on the
consolidated balance sheets. As of March 29, 2025 and March 30, 2024 and-AprH152023-, the SERP liabilities were $ 29. 4
and $ 29. 9 and-$25-7F, respectively, of which, $ 2. 0 and are-$ 0. 0 were recorded in accrued expenses on the consolidated
balance sheets, respectively, while the remainder was included within other noncurrent liabilities on the consolidated balance
sheets. Defined Benefit Health Care Plans The Company, for the benefit of current and former union employees at its Heim,
West Trenton, Plymouth and PIC facilities and former union employees of its Tyson and Nice subsidiaries, sponsors
contributory defined benefit health care plans that provide postretirement medical and life insurance benefits to union employees
who have attained certain age and / or service requirements while employed by the Company. The plans are unfunded and costs
are paid as incurred. Postretirement benefit obligations were $ 2. 0 and $ 2 . and-$-2 —4-at March 29, 2025 and March 30, 2024
and-Apri5;2023-, respectively. Of these amounts, $ 0. 2 is considered current and is included within accrued expenses and



other current liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets as of both March 29, 2025 and March 30, 2024 and-Aprit52623-.
The remainder of the balances are included in other noncurrent liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets. The Company also
maintains a frozen defined benefit heath care plan for Dodge employees with postretirement benefit obligations of $ 5. 4 and $
5. 8 and-$-6-3-at March 29, 2025 and March 30, 2024 and-Apri45;2023-, respectively. Of these amounts, $0.7 and $ 0. 8
were considered current at beth-March 29, 2025 and March 30, 2024 and-Aprit-52623-. The amounts are included within the
same balance sheet line items as other postretirement health care plans maintained by the Company. +6-15 . Income Taxes
Income before income taxes for the Company’ s domestic and foreign operations is as follows: Fiscal Year Ended March 29,
2025 March 30, 2024 April 1, 2023 Apeit2;2022-Domestic $292.5 $ 240. 8 $ 191. 0 $-68-8-Foreign 19.4 21. 0 18. 799
Total income before income taxes $ 311. 9 $ 261. 8 $ 209 —F$F8- 7 The provision for income taxes consists of the following:
Fiscal Year Ended March 29, 2025 March 30, 2024 April 1, 2023 Aprit2;2022-Current tax expense: Federal $ 78. 58 53. 1 §
53.0$483State 9.55.9 7. 5 26-Forcign 4.5 5.2 3. 9 292 . 9-5 64. 2 64. 4 238-Deferred tax expense: Federal (21. 0) (9.
3)(20. 0) €8"5)-State (4. 6) (4. 3) (2. 6) €03>Foreign (1.2) 1.3 1. 2426 . 6-8) (12. 3) (21. 4) 2-Total income taxes $ 65.7 $
51.9 § 43 -8-%24-. 0 An analysis of the difference between the provision for income taxes and the amount computed by
applying the U. S. statutory income tax rate to pre- tax income follows: Fiscal Year Ended March 29, 2025 March 30, 2024
April 1, 2023 Apeit-22622-Income taxes using U. S. federal statutory rate $ 65.5 $ 55. 0 $ 44. 0 $3+6-—5-State income taxes, net
of federal benefit 4. 2 0. 8 3. 9 +-93-Stock- based compensation €0. 2 (0. 9) (1 =6+2-. 6) Foreign rate differential 0.32.0 1. 1 4=
6-Research and development credits (2. 4) (2. 5) (2. 4 3¥5-) Company- owned life insurance (0. 2) (0. 8) 0. 3 €6—8)-Foreign
derived intangible income (FDII) (3.7) (3.3 ) (2. 795 U. S. unrecognized tax positions 1.2 1. 5 (1. 9) 5—4-Aeguisition
eosts-0—0-0-01+—7Valuation allowance (1. 1) (1. 7) 0. 0 23-Other-net 1. 71.82. 38865 .27 $ 51. 9 $ 43 —6-$24- 0 Net
deferred tax assets (liabilities) are comprised of the following: March 29, 2025 March 30, 2024 Aprit452623-Deferred tax
assets: Pension and postretirement benefits $ 1. 3 $ 1. 5 $4-8-Employee compensation accruals 10. 8 11. 4 +8-Inventory
reserves 19 . 9 Inventory-15. 6 +5—8-Operating lease liabilities 10. § 8. 0 #8-Finance lease liabilities 0. 9 0. 3 6—6-Stock
compensation 4. 1 5 —4-3-. 4 Tax loss and credit carryforwards 12. 3 11 =542~ 5 State tax +2 . 3-0 1. 3 Other accrued liabilities
9. 6 8. 1 89-Capitalized research and development costs 21. 5 16. 4 &+Other 0. 9 0. 4 5—+Total gross deferred tax assets 93. 8
79. 9 #5-6-Valuation allowance (5.7 ) (7 . 0 38-5-) Total deferred tax assets $ 88.1 § 72. 9 $-67F+Deferred tax liabilities:
Property, plant and equipment $ (31. 1) $ (32. 4 3$33-5-) Operating lease assets ( 10. 3) (7. 7) Other ( 4. 2) (3. 7 —HOther
B33 Intangible assets ( 299. 3) (312. 4 H3+6-F) Total deferred tax liabilities $ (344.9) $ (356 —2y$36+. 2) Total net
deferred liabilities $ ( 256. 8) $ (283. 3 ¥$2941-) The Company evaluates deferred tax assets to ensure that the estimated
future taxable income will be sufficient in character (i. e. capital versus ordinary income treatment), amount and timing to result
in their recovery. After considering the positive and negative evidence, a valuation allowance has been recorded on foreign tax
credits and on certain state and foreign credits and net operating losses as it is more likely than not (i. e., greater than a 50 %
likelihood) that these items will not be utilized. For the Company’ s fiscal year ended March 36-29 , 2024-202S the valuation
allowance decreased by $ 1. 3. For the fiscal year ended March 30, 2024 the valuation allowance decreased by $ 1. 5, which
primarily related to the expiration of a capital loss carryforward —Fer-the-fiseal-yearended-Aprii;2623-the-valuation
altowanee-deereased-bydessthan-$-06-—2- These valuation allowances are required because management has determined, based

on financial projections and available tax strategies, that it is unlikely the net operating losses and credits will be utilized before
they expire. If events or circumstances change, valuation allowances are adjusted at that time resulting in an income tax benefit
or charge. At March 36-29 , 2624-2025 , the Company had state-State net operating loss carryovers in different jurisdictions at
varying amounts up to $ 5. 3, which expire at various dates through 2036. At March 36-29 , 2624-2025 , the Company had
foreign net operating loss carryovers in different jurisdictions at varying amounts totaling $ 2-1 . -8 , which will expire at
various dates through fiscal 2028. At March 36-29 , 2624-2025 , the Company had U. S. federal and state credits in different
Jurlsdrctrons at Varylng amounts up to $ 11. 9—3 Wthh prrn(:lpally exprre at Varrous dates through %938—2039 —At—M&feh—?rG—

accountlng standards (ASC 740) a deferred tax hablhty is not recorded for the excess of the tax basrs over the ﬁnancral
reporting (book) basis of an investment in a foreign subsidiary if the indefinite reinvestment criteria is met. The Tax Cuts and
Jobs Act (TCJA) required a mandatory deemed repatriation of certain undistributed earnings of the Company’ s foreign
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2017, and income taxes were accrued accordingly. If these deemed repatriated earnings were
distributed in the form of cash dividends, the Company would not be subject to additional U. S. income taxes, other than tax
arising from the movement of foreign exchange rates on previously taxed earnings, but could be subject to foreign income and
withholding taxes. A provision had not been made for additional U. S. and foreign taxes at March 36-29 , 2624-2025 on
approximately $ 7487 . 9-4 of undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries or for any additional tax on the deemed repatriated
earnings because the Company intends to reinvest these funds indefinitely to support foreign growth opportunities and foreign
operations. Due to the inherent complexity of the multinational tax environment in which the Company operates, it is not
practicable to estimate the unrecognized deferred tax liability on these undistributed earnings. These earnings could become
subject to additional tax under certain circumstances including, but not limited to, loans to the Company, or upon sale or
pledging of the foreign subsidiary’ s stock. Uncertain Tax Positions Unrecognized income tax benefits represent income tax
positions taken on income tax returns but not yet recognized in the consolidated financial statements. If recognized, substantially
all of the unrecognized tax benefits for the Company’ s fiscal years ended March 29, 2025 and March 30, 2024 and-Apri;
2623-would affect the effective income tax rate. A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax
benefits is as follows: March 29, 2025 March 30, 2024 April 1, Aprit-2023 Balance, beginning of year $ 15. 2 ;Balanee;
beginningefyear$ 13. 1 $ 22. 8 $46-6-Gross increases (decreases) — tax positions taken during a prior period 1.5 2.0 (8. 9) 6=
4-Gross increases — tax positions taken during the current period 4. 5 1. 7 1. 7 #6-Reductions due to lapse of the applicable

statute of limitations (1. 4) (1. 6) (2. 5) ¢Balance, end of year $ 19. 8 $ 15. 2 § 13. | —8)Balanee;end-ofyear$4+5-2-5431%



22-8-The Company recognizes the interest and penalties accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense.
The Company recognized a-benefit-an expense of $ 0. 3 for the fiscal year ended March 36-29 , 2024-2025 and benefit of $ 0. 3
and expense of $-81-and-$ 0. | related to interest and penalties on its statement of operations for the fiscal years ended March
30, 2024 and April 1, 2023 aad-ApeH-2;,2022- respectively. The Company had approximately $ 1. 6 and $ 1. 2 and-$+-5-of
accrued interest and penalties at March 29, 2025 and March 30, 2024 and-AprH352023-, respectively. The Company believes
it is reasonably possible that some of its unrecognized tax positions may be effectively settled by the end of the Company’ s
fiscal year ending March 29-28 , 2625-2026 , due to the closing of audits and the statute of limitations expiring in various
jurisdictions. The decrease, pertaining primarily to federal and state credits and state tax, is estimated to be $ 1. 9-6 . The
Company files income tax returns in numerous U. S. and foreign jurisdictions, with returns subject to examination for varying
periods, but generally back to and including the fiscal year ending April 3-2 , 26242022 , although certain tax credits generated
in earlier years are open under statute from March 34+29 , 26672008 . The Company is no longer subject to U. S. federal tax
examination by the Internal Revenue Service for years ending before April 3-2 , 26242022 . +7-16 . Stockholders’ Equity We
are authorized to issue 10, 000, 000 shares of preferred stock, $ 0. 01 par value per share, in one or more series and to fix the
powers, designations, preferences and relative participating, option or other rights thereof, including dividend rights, conversion
rights, voting rights, redemption terms, liquidation preferences and the number of shares constituting any series, without any
fulther vote or action by our stockholders In hscal 2022, we completed an oﬁermg ot 4, 600, 000 shares of MCPS -m—a—ptrb-he

t-he—MGP—S— The Company made dl\’ldend payments of $ 5. 7 on Ap111 -1—7—12 %92—3—2024 $ 5.8 on July ++12, %92—3—2024
and $ 5. 87 on October -1-6—292—3—aﬁd—$é—7—eﬁ—,laﬁu&fy—l 5, 2024 On October 15, 2024 each then- outstandlng share of the

eustem&fy—&ﬁ&—é-}u&eﬁ—adjﬁst-meﬂfs— The conversion r"lte was tha

based on a value for the common stock equal to the lower of (i) the average ot the daily VWAPs in the 20- tradlng- day
period through October 14, 2024 (the daily VWAP is the per share volume- weighted average priees— price ever-of the
Common Stock on the New York Stock Exchange for a given trading day as reported by Bloomberg) or (ii) $ 226. 63.
Because the VWAP average for the 20 eenseettive-trading days through beginning-en-andineludingthe 2+stseheduted
trading-day-immediately-before-October +5;2024-14 was $ 292 . The-S5, the $ 226. 63 common stock value was utilized to
produce the conversion rate appheable-to-mandatory-of 0. 4413 shares of common stock for each share of MCPS. This is
known as the “ Minimum Conversion Rate ” in the Certificate of Designations defining the terms of the MCPS. The

dividend on the MCPS that accrued through the eenrversions— conversion may-inreertain-eireumstanees-be-inereased-date

was paid on the conversion date to eempensate-holders of record on October 1, 2024 and therefore was not factored into
the conversion rate MCPStforeertainrunpatd-acenmulated-dividends- We are-were authorized to issue 60, 000, 000 shares of
common stock, $ 0. 01 par value per share. Holders of common stock are entitled to one vote per share. Holders of common
stock are entitled to receive dividends, if and when declared by our Board of Directors, and to share ratably in our assets legally
available for distribution to our stockholders in the event of liquidation after giving effect to any liquidation preference for the
benefit of the MEPRS-er-any etherpreferred stock then outstanding. Holders of common stock have no preemptive, subscription,
redemption, or conversion rights. The holders of common stock do not have cumulative voting rights. The holders of a majority
of the shares of common stock can elect all of the directors dnd can control our management and affairs —I-ﬂ—ﬁsea-l—2-92—2—we

aeqﬁt&meﬁ—ef—Bedge— Long- Term Equlty Incentive Plans The Company S long term equ1ty incentive plans (the “ Equlty
Plans ) provide for grants of stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock and performance awards to directors,
officers and other employees and persons who engage in services for the Company. The purpose of the Equity Plans is to
provide these individuals with incentives to maximize stockholder value and otherwise contribute to the Company’ s success
and to enable the Company to attract, retain and reward the best available persons for positions of responsibility. 1, 500, 000
shares of common stock were authorized for issuance under each Equity Plan when it was adopted, subject to adjustment in the



event of a reorganization, stock split, merger or similar change in the Company’ s corporate structure or in the outstanding
shares of common stock. The Company’ s Compensation Committee administers the Equity Plans, although the Company’ s
Board of Directors also has the authority to administer the Equity Plans and to take all actions that the Compensation Committee
is otherwise authorized to take under the Equity Plans. The terms and conditions of each award made under an Equity Plan,
including vesting requirements, are set forth in a written agreement with the recipient that is consistent with the terms of the
relevant Equity Plan. As of March 36-29 , 2624-2025 the Company’ s long- term equity incentive plans were as follows: the
2013 Equity Plan, which expired in 2023 although stock options awarded under this plan are still outstanding; the 2017 Equity
Plan, which expires in 2027; and the 2021 Equity Plan, which expires in 2031. As of March 36-29 , 2624-2025 there were 272
181 , 328-696 and 1, 500, 000 shares available for future awards under the 2017 and 2021 Equity plans-Plans , respectively.
Stock Options. Under the Equlty Plans, the Compensatlon Commlttee or the Board may approve the award of non- qualified
stock optlons —TFhe ; app g

v eisable-attomatically uponachangeineon The Compensanon Committee may not, however, approve an
award to any one person (other than Dr. Michael .l Hartnett) in any calendar year for options to purchase common stock equal to
more than 10 % of the total number of shares authorized under the relevant Equity Plan. The Compensation Committee will
approve the exercise price and term of any option in its discretion; however, the exercise price may not be less than 100 % of the
fair market value of a share of common stock on the date of grant. The Equity Plans also authorize the Compensation
Committee to award incentive stock options conforming to the requirements of Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code, but to
date no such options have been awarded. As of March 36-29 , 2624-2025 , there were -1 , 272-500 outstanding options under
the 2013 Equity Plan, all of which were exercisable, 497312 , 626-519 outstanding options under the 2017 Equity Plan, 233-121
, 446-755 of which were exercisable, and no outstanding eptierroptions under the 2021 Equity Plan. Restricted Stock. Under the
Equity Plans, the Compensation Committee may approve the award of restricted stock subject to the conditions and restrictions,
and for the duration that it determines in its discretion. Under each of the 2017 and 2021 Equity Plans, the number of shares that
may be used for restricted stock awards may not exceed 50 % of the total authorized number of shares under that Equity Plan.
As of March 36-29 , 2024-2025 , there were zero, +473-132 , 445-812 and zero shares of restricted stock outstanding under the
2013,2017 and 2021 Equity Plans, respectively. Performance Awards. The Compensation Committee may approve
performance awards contingent upon achievement by the recipient, or by the Company, of set goals and objectives regarding
specified performance criteria, over a specified performance cycle. Awards may include specific dollar- value target awards,
performance units the value of which is established at the time of grant, and / or performance shares the value of which is equal
to the fair market value of a share of common stock on the date of grant. The value of a performance award may be fixed or
fluctuate on the basis of specified performance criteria. A performance award may be paid out in cash and / or shares of
common stock or other securities. Certain senior executive officers receive performance awards in the form of stock options,
restricted stock and / or unrestricted stock. Stock Appreciation Rights. The Compensation Committee may approve the grant of
stock appreciation rights, or SARs, subject to the terms and conditions contained in the Equity Plans. The exercise price of an
SAR must equal the fair market value of a share of the Company’ s common stock on the date the SAR is granted. Upon
exercise of an SAR, the grantee will receive an amount in shares of our common stock equal to the difference between the fair
market value of a share of common stock on the date of exercise and the exercise price of the SAR, multiplied by the number of
shares as to which the SAR is exercised. There were no SARs issued or outstanding under the Plans as of March 36-29 , 20624
2025 . Amendment and Termination of the Equity Plans. Except as otherwise provided in an award agreement, the Board of
Directors, without approval of the stockholders, may amend or terminate any Equity Plan, except that no amendment will
become effective without prior approval of the stockholders of the Company if stockholder approval would be required by
applicable law or regulations, including if required (i) under the provisions of Section 409A or any successor thereto, (ii) under
the provisions of Section 422 of the Code or any successor thereto, or (iii) by any listing requirement of the principal stock
exchange on which the common stock is then listed. Subject to the provisions of an award agreement, which may be more
restrictive, no termination of an Equity Plan may materially and adversely affect any of the rights or obligations of any award
recipient, without his or her written consent, under any award of options or other incentives previous granted under the relevant
Equity Plan. A summary of the status of the Company’ s stock options outstanding as of March 36-29 , 2624-202S and changes
during the year then ended is presented below. All cashless exercises of options are handled through an independent broker.
Number Of Common Stock Optlons Weighted Average Exercise Price Per Share Weighted Average Contractual Life (Years)
Intrinsic Value Outstandlng, 5 5
e irations A ',March 30, 2024 505, 892$171 38 3. 6$50 lAwarded
44 334 297 81 Exerclsed (223 693) 156 25 Forfeltures (11 839) 189. 67 Expirations (675) 163. 35 Outstanding, March
29,2025 314,019 $ 199. 24 3.7 $ 39. 7 Exercisable, March 36-29 , 2024-2025 244123 , H2-255 $ 168. +55- 15-39-2. 85§
2719 . 84 The fair value for the Company’ s options was estimated at the date of grant using the Black- Scholes option pricing
model with the following weighted- average assumptions, which are updated to reflect current expectations of the dividend
yield, expected life, risk- free interest rate and using historical volatility to project expected volatility: Fiscal Year Ended March
29, 2025 March 30, 2024 April 1, 2023 Aprit2;-Dividend yield 0. 00 % 0. 00 % 0. 00 % Expected weighted- average life (yrs.)
5.05.05. 0 Risk- free interest rate 3. 87 % 4. 20 % 3. 05 % 6-Expected volatility 45 . 95 % Expeeted-volattity-46. 71 % 45.
57 %43—43-% The weighted average fair value per share of options granted was $ 134. 48 in fiscal 2025, $ 99. 92 in fiscal 2024
sand $ 90. 39 in fiscal 2023 and-$F6—654nfiseal 2022~ The Company recorded $ 2. 6-7 (net of taxes of $ 0. 8) in compensation
expense in fiscal 2024-2025 related to option awards. As of March 36-29 , 2624-2025 , there was $ 9-11 . 94 of unrecognized
compensation costs related to options which is expected to be recognized over a Weighted average period of 3. 5 years. The total
intrinsic value of options exercised in fiscal 2025, 2024 ;-and 2023 and-2022-was $ 33.2,$ 22. 9 yand $ 16 —9-and-$H-. 9,
respectively. Of the total awards outstanding at March 36-29 , 2624-2025 , 563-311 , +32-466 were either fully vested or are




expected to vest. These shares have a weighted average exercise price of $ #H4-—39-198 . 82, an intrinsic value of § 49-39 . 9-5
and a weighted average contractual term of 3. 6 years. A summary of the status of the Company’ s restricted stock outstanding
as of March 36-29 , 2624-2025 and the Changes during the year then ended is presented below. Number Of Restricted Stock
Shares Weighted- Average Grant Date Fair Value Non- vested,
¥ested—684—854)444—26—Ferfeﬁ&fe&62—248)494—}9—Ne&*ested—March 30, 2024 173, 445 $ 199. 09 Granted 46, 298 294. 66
Vested (81, 730) 196. 77 Forfeitures (5, 201) 190. 12 Non- vested, March 29, 2025 132, 812 $ 234. 18 The Werghted average
fair value per share of restricted stock granted was $ 294. 66 in fiscal 2025, $ 205. 50 in fiscal 2024 s-and $ 201. 60 in fiscal
2023 and-$198-04-infiseal 2622~ The Company recorded $ 8. 9-7 (net of taxes of $ 2. 6) in compensation expense in fiscal
2624-2025 related to restricted stock awards. These awards were valued at the fair market value of the Company’ s common
stock on the date of issuance and are being amortized as expense over the applicable vesting period. The total fair value of
restricted stock awards that vested during fiscal 2025, 2024, and 2023 ;and2022-was $ 24.5,$ 19. 2 ;-and $ 21. 2 and-$221
respectively. Unrecognized expense for restricted stock was $ 48-19 . 9-7 at March 38-29 , 2624-2025 . This cost is expected to
be recognized over a weighted average period of approximately 2. 6 years. A summary of the status of the Company’ s liability
classified awards outstanding as of March 36-29 , 2624-2025 and the changes during the year then ended is presented below.
Intrinsic Value Outstanding, AprtH+-March 30 , 2623-2024 $ —11. 7 Awarded +H+4 . 7 Vested —(5. 8) Cancelled — Change
in fair value —2. 7 Outstanding, March 36-29 , 2624-202S5 $ +-13 . -3 Estimated liability as of March 36-29 , 2624-2025 §$ 2-8
.54 The Company recorded $ +9netoftaxesof$0-6 ). 5 in stock- based compensation expense in fiscal 2024-2025 related
to liability awards. As of March 29, 2025 and March 30, 2024, § 5. 0 and $ 0. 5 were included other current liabilities,
respectively. As of March 29, 2025 and March 30, 2024, $ 3. 4 and $ 2. 0 were and-$-0--5=was-included in other noncurrent
liabilities and-ethereurrenttabilities-, respectively. As of March 36-29 , 2024-2025 there was $ 9-6 . 2-3 of unrecognized
compensation costs related to liability awards which is expected to be recognlzed over a weighted average period of 3—1 .7
years. The total intrinsic value of liability classified awards vested in fiscal 2025, 2024 ;-and 2023 and2022-was $5.8,$ 0. 05
and $ 0. 0 and-$-0-0-, respectively. 4817 . Commitments and Contingencies As of March 36-29 , 2024-2025 . approximately 5
% of the Company’ s hourly employees in the U. S. and abroad were represented by labor unions. The Company enters into U.
S. government contracts and subcontracts that are subject to audit by the U. S. government. In the opinion of the Company’ s
management, the results of such audits, if any, are not expected to have a material impact on the cash flows, financial condition
or results of operations of the Company. For fiscal 2025, 2024 ;-and 2023 and-2622-, there were no audits by the U. S.
government, the results of which, in the opinion of the Company’ s management, had a material impact on the cash flows,
financial condition or results of operations of the Company. The Company is subject to federal, state and local environmental
laws and regulations, including those governing discharges of pollutants into the air and water, the storage, handling and
disposal of wastes and the health and safety of employees. The Company also may be liable under the Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act or similar state laws for the costs of investigation and cleanup of
contamination at facilities currently or formerly owned or operated by the Company, or at other facilities at which the Company
may have disposed of hazardous substances. In connection with such contamination, the Company may also be liable for natural
resource damages, U. S. government penalties and claims by third parties for personal injury and property damage. Agencies
responsible for enforcing these laws have authority to impose significant civil or criminal penalties for non- compliance. The
Company believes it is currently in matertal-compliance with all applicable requirements of environmental laws. The Company
does not anticipate material capital expenditures for environmental Comphance in fiscal years 26252026 or 2626-2027 .
Monltorlng -I-ﬂvest-tgat-ten—&ﬂd-femedﬂt-ten—of contamination is ongoing at some of the Company’ s sites. In particular, state
agencies have been overseeing groundwater monitoring activities at the Company’ s facility in Hartsville, South Carolina. At
Hartsville, the Company is monitoring low levels of contaminants in the groundwater caused by former operations. Plans are
currently underway to conclude remestation-and-monitoring activities. In connection with the purchase of the Fairfield,
Connecticut facility in 1996, the Company agreed to assume responsibility for completing clean- up efforts previously initiated
by the prior owner. The Company submitted data to the state that the Company believes demonstrates that no further remedial
action is necessary, although the state may require additional clean- up or monitoring. ©a-The Company does not believe any
further remedial action is necessary, therefore, no reserves have been recorded as of March 9-29 , 2025. In 2022 and
Mareh 2452023, the Company received civil investigative demands from the United States Department of Justice pursuant to
the False Claims Act ;3+5—S5—6—$3733the~“FEA)- The investigation concerns allegations that the Company submitted
false claims in connection with (i) certifying that the Company’ s employees were eligible for unemployment insurance benefits
and pandemic relief and worked reduced hours and (ii) received grant proceeds in violation of the FCA. The Company is
cooperating with the investigation. The As-the-investigation is ongoing and in-ts-eathystagess-it is not possible to determine
whether the investigation will have a material adverse effect, if any, on the Company Bestides-the-matter-desertbed-irthe
previousparagraphfrontFrom time to time we are involved in litigation that arises in the ordrnary course of business, but we
do not believe that any such litigation in which we are currently involved, either individually or in the aggregate, is likely to
have a material adverse effect on our business, ﬁnancral Cond1t10n operatlng results Cash flow or prospects 18 fPhe—Gefnp&ny

followrng F 1scal Year Ended March 29, 2025 March 30 2024 Apr11 1 2023 Apﬂ-lé—2922—Plant consohdatlon and
restructuring costs $ 1.5 8 2. 7 § 2. 5 $4—-Acquisition costs and transition services — 0. 3 8. 9 38—6-Provision for deubtfit
aceountsO-credit losses 1 . 2 0. 2 0. 8 8—=5-Amortization of intangibles 71. 8 70. 4 69. | 34—7Fess-on-disposalofassets-6-6-0-3
83-Other expense 2. 41.20. 660-8%$76 . 5-9 $ 74. 8 $ 82. 1 19 2-$F4-8-$821-5-68420- Reportable Segments The

Company operates through two operating segments and reports its financial results based on how its chief operating decision



maker makes operating decisions, assesses the performance of the business, and allocates resources. Our operating segments are
our reportable segments. These reportable segments are Aerospace / Defense and Industrial and are described below. Aerospace
/ Defense. This segment represents the end markets for the Company’ s highly engineered bearings and precision components
used in commercial aerospace, defense aerospace, and-sea-and-defense marine, defense ground vehicles, missiles and guided
munitions, and space and satellite applications. We supply precision products for many of the commercial aircraft
currently operating worldwide and are the primary bearing supplier for many of the aircraft OEMs’ product lines.
Commercial and defense applieations-aerospace customers generally require precision products, often constructed of
special materials and made to unique designs and specifications. Many of our aerospace bearings and engineered
component products are designed and certified during the original development of the aircraft being served, which often
makes us the primary bearing supplier for the life of that aircraft . Industrial. This segment represents the end markets for
the Company’ s highly engineered bearings and precision components used in various industrial applications including: pewer
transmisstor-construction, mining, forestry, energy, agricultural and other machinery ; aggregate eonstraetion, mining;
energy-and speetalized-equipment-cement handling; food and beverage manufacturing; grain, and agricultural product
handling; metals and mining material handling; chemicals, oil and gas production; warehousing and logistics;
manufacturing automation and semiconductor preduetiorrequipment ; power generation; waste and water management;
rail and transportation. Our products target market applications in which our engineering and manufacturing 3
agrieultural-machinery,eommereial-track-capabilities provide us with a competitive advantage in the marketplace. The
Company’ s Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) is the President and autemetive-manufaetaring:-Chief Executive
Officer. The CODM uses segment gross margin as the primary measurement of profitability. On a monthly basis, the
CODM considers budget- to- actual variances and teotholding-historical trends for gross margin when making decisions
about allocating capital to segments . The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as those described in
Note 2 Seoment peIformance is evaluated based on segment net sales and gross mdlgm Hemsnotaloeatedto-segment
peratig de-eorporate-administrative-expenses-and-eertatroth eurts—Where not separately disclosed,
corporate costs are allocated to each segment. ldentlhdble assets by reportable segment consist of those directly identified with
the segment’ s operations. Fiscal Year Ended March 29, 2025 March 30, 2024 April 1, 2023 Aprit2;2022-Net External Sales :
Aecrospace / Defense $ 592. 8 $ 519. 4 § 430. 3 $38+"5-Industrial 1, 043.51, 040.9 1, 039. 0 56+-4-$ 1,636.3 $ 1, 560.3 $ 1,
469. 3 Cost of Sales: $-942-9-Gress-Margin-Acrospace / Defense $ 208-349.7 $ 310. 6 $ 259. 3 Industrial 560. 5 579. 2 605. 2
$910.2$889 .8 3> 864 -1—7-1—9—$—1§§—1—}ﬂduseﬂa4—46-1—7483—8%92—9—$—649— 5 Gross Margin: $-664—8-$-357—1Seling;
Acrospace / Defense $ 37-243.1 $ 208 . 8 § 171 3+3-$29- 0 Industrial $32-483. 0 461. 7
433 . 84228 726.1 5 670 . 5 588 604 . 8 Reconciliation of gross margin to income before income taxes: Selling, general
and administrative $ (279. 3) $ (253. 5) $ (229. 7) Other, net (76. 9) (74. 8) (82. 1) Interest expense, net (59. 8) (78. 7) (76. 7)
Other non- operating (expense) / income 1. 8 (1. 7) ( 6 Corporate-82-. 6) Income before income taxes $ 311 . 9 76—1+86-6-5
253261 . 5-8 $ 229-209 . 7 Total Assets: $367-6OperatingIneeme-Acrospace / Defense $ 4641, 010 . 78 $ 32-798 . 76 $
H7749 . 8 Industrial 272-3,594. 0 3, 779 . 6 236-3, 845 . 7 5+67-5-Corporate 80 {92~ H(764 100. 4 94. 9 $ 4, 685 . 2 (164
2353424, 678 . 2-6 $ 2934, 690 . 4 Capital Expenditures: 8-$12+-—TFetal-Assets-Acrospace / Defense $ 798-17.5$10 .6 §
9 74985776~ 5 Industrial 27. 0 20. 4 29. 1 Corporate 5. 3 2 7779~ 6-2 3 ;-845-73;920-9-Cerporate1+06-. 4 94-$ 49 . 91488
$33.2 $42 . 0 Depreciation & Amortization: $-4-678—6-$-4-696—4-$4:845—4-Capital- Expenditares-Acrospace / Defense $
-1-9-23 3 $ 19 6 3> 9—18 6§—$—74J—lndustr1dl %9—92 1 96 393 4294493 Corporate 24 . 2-6 3. 4 3. 4 $120. 0 $ 33-2-$420
- e A 3 0-119 —6-$18-6-519Hndustrial96- 3 93-$ 115 . 4 43—+

Gefpef&te%—4—3—4—3—3—$+l-9—3—$—l—lé—44$—65%—(wogmph1c External Sales : Domestic $ 1,449.7 $1,375.4$1,292. 9 $833-
4-Foreign (1) 186. 6 184. 9 176. 4 +69-5-5 1,636.3 $ 1, 560. 3 § 1,469. 3 -$—942—9—Geoudphlc Long- Lived Assets Domestic
$347.09$ 341.5 8 360. 7 $3930-Foreign (2) 70. 6 60.9 56.0 5'8—$ 417 . 6 $ 402. 4 $ 416. 7 (1) Primarily attributable to
Switzerland and Canada. ( 2 $402-) Primarily attributable to Switzerland and Mexico . 20 4-$-46-—7$43+-221 Related
Party Transactions Equity Method Investee The Company has a 20 % joint venture interest in CoLinx, which provides Nerth
Ameﬂea—feeﬂsed-eﬂje—rﬂ-t—loustlcs and e- business services to its —’thefﬁﬂeﬂf&fe—@ebmah]:&@(ieebﬁﬁ%)—rﬂe}udes—ﬁ*‘e
equtty-members +Fim - The e- business service
focuses on information and busmess services f01 duthonzed dlStl‘lbutOI% in the Industrml segment. Total expenses for services
provided by CoLinx for the fiscal years ended March 29, 2025, March 30, 2024 s-and April 1, 2023 and-Aprit-2;2022-were $
18.0,$ 18. 5 ;and $ 18. 4 and-$F-2-, respectively, and were included within selling, general and administrative costs on the
consolidated statements of operations. Amounts outstanding in respect of these transactions were payables of $ 0. 9 and $ 0. 7
and-$1-8-as of March 29, 2025 and March 30, 2024 and-Aprd52023-, respectively, and were included within accounts
payable on the consolidated balance sheets. No dividends were received from CoLinx during the periods presented. The
Company does not have any other equity method investees. The Company does not have any other significant related- party
transactions. ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE None. ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and
Procedures The Company’ s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective disclosure controls and
procedures, as defined under Rule 13a- 15 (e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. As of the end of the period covered by
this report, the Company performed an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of the Company’ s
management, including its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the Company’ s
disclosure controls and procedures. In making its assessment, management has utilized the criteria set forth by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations (COSO) of the Treadway Commission in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013
Framework). Based upon that evaluation, the Company’ s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that
the Company’ s disclosure controls and procedures provide reasonable assurance that the material information required to be




disclosed by the Company in the reports that it files or submits to the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Commission’ s
rules and forms. The Company’ s management believes that its disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of March 36
29, 2624-2025 . Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting No changes were made to the Company’ s internal
control over financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a- 15 (f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) during the last fiscal
quarter that materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’ s internal control over financial
reporting. Management’ s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting Management of RBC Bearings Incorporated is
responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in
Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The Company’ s internal control over financial reporting is supported by written policies and
procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the Company’ s assets; (i) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of the Company’ s management and
directors; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or
disposition of the Company’ s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. Because of its inherent
limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. Under the supervision and with the participation
of our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, we conducted an evaluation of the
effectiveness of the Company’ s internal control over financial reporting as of March 36-29 , 2624-2025 as required by Securities
Exchange Act of 1934. In making this assessment, we used the criteria set forth in the framework in Internal Control- Integrated
Framework (2013 Framework) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on
our evaluation under the framework in Internal Control- Integrated Framework, our management concluded that our internal
control over financial reporting was effective as of March 36-29 , 2024-2025 . The effectiveness of our internal control over
financial reporting as of March 36-29 , 2024-2025 has been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, an independent registered public
accounting ﬁrrn as stated in their report Wthh appears on the followmg page / s / RBGBe&ﬂﬁgs—I-neefpefated—Repeﬁ—ef

o e eetorsof- RBC Bearings Incorporated
OplnlOIl on Internal Control Over F 1nan01al Reporting We have audited RBC Bearings Incorporated’ s internal control over
financial reporting as of March 36-29 , 2624-2025 , based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (2013 framework) (the COSO criteria). In
our opinion, RBC Bearings Incorporated (the Company) maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over
financial reporting as of March 36-29 , 2024-2025 , based on the COSO criteria. We also have audited, in accordance with the
standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the consolidated balance sheets of the
Company as of March 29, 2025 and March 30, 2024 and-Apri52023-, the related consolidated statements of operations,
comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended March 36-29 , 2024
2025, and the related notes and our report dated May +716 , 2624-2025 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon. Basis-for
Optnter-The Company’ s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for
its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Management’ s
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’ s internal
control over financial reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required
to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U. S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining
an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion. Definition and Limitations of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting A company’ s internal control over financial
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’ s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’ s assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not
prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate. / s / Ernst & Young LLP Stamferd-Cenneetient-ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION During the
quarter ended March 36-29 , 2624-2025 no director or officer of the Company adopted or terminated a Rule 10b5- 1 trading plan
or non- Rule 10b5- 1 trading arrangement. ITEM 9C. DISCLOSURE REGARDING FOREIGN JURISDICTIONS THAT
PREVENT INSPECTIONS Netapplieable—PART III The information called for by Part III, Items 10, 11, 12, 13 and 14 of




Form 10- K will be included in the Company’ s Proxy Statement for its 2624-2025 Annual Meeting of Shareholders
Stockholders , which the Company intends to file within 120 days after the close of its fiscal year ended March 36-29 , 2624
2025, and which is incorporated herein by reference. PART IV ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT
SCHEDULES (a) (1) The following Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Data of the Company are included
in Item 8, “ Financial Statements and Supplementary Data > of this Annual Report on Form 10- K: ® Report of Independent
Registered Public Accounting Firm; @ Consolidated Balance Sheets at March 29, 2025 and March 30, 2024; e Consolidated
Statements of Operations for the fiscal years ended March 29, 2025, March 30, 2024 and April 1, 2023; e Consolidated
Statements of Operations-Comprehensive Income for the fiscal years ended March 29, 2025, March 30, 2024 ;-and April 1,

2023 and-Aprit2;2022-; @ Consolidated Statements of Comprehensivetneome-Stockholders’ Equity for the fiscal years ended
March 29, 2025, March 30, 2024 s-and April 1, 2023 and-Apri-2;2622-; e Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

-Steekhe-l-defs—Equtﬁ'—for the ﬁseal years ended March 29 2025 March 30 2024 —and Aprrl 1,2023 aﬂd—Apﬂ-lH@QQ—O

3 : W afrd ;and e
Notes to Consolrdated Financial Statements (2) For a list of the Company s Frnanelal Statement Schedules see ltem 15 (c) of
this Annual Report on Form 10- K. (3) For a list of the exhibits required by Regulation S- K, see Item 15 (b) of this Annual
Report on Form 10- K. (b) The Exhibits required by Item 601 of Regulation S- K are filed as exhibits to this Annual Report on
Form 10- K and indexed below immediately following Item 15 (c), which index is incorporated herein by reference. (c) All
Financial Statement Schedules are included in the Financial Statements and Supplementary Data under Item 15 (a) (1) of this
Annual Report on Form 10- K and incorporated herein by reference. Exhibit Index The following exhibits are filed as part of
this Annual Report on Form 10- K. The exhibits that are indicated below as having been previously filed by RBC Bearings
Incorporated with the SEC are incorporated herein by reference. Our Commission file number is 001- 40840. Exhibit Number
Description of Document 3. 1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of RBC Bearings Incorporated dated August
13,2005 (filed with Amendment No. 4 to Registration Statement on Form S- 1 dated August 8, 2005). 3. 2 Amended and
Restated Bylaws of RBC Bearings lncorporated (ﬁled as Exhrbrt 3.1to Current Report on Form 8- K dated September 15,
2017). 4.1 Descrrptron of Capital Stock filed-as ; date :

dated as of October 7 2021 by and among Roller Bearrng Company of Amerrca lnc and Wllmmgton Trust, Natronal
Association for 4. 375 % Semor Notes due 2029 (filed as Exhibit 4. 1 to Current Report on Form 8- K dated October 7, 2021).
4.6-4 Form of 4. 375 % Senior Notes due 2029 (filed as Exhibit 4. 2 to Current Report on Form 8- K dated October 7, 2021).
10. 1 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated as of June 3-27 , 2622-2024 , between RBC Bearings Incorporated
and Michael J. Hartnett, Ph. D. (filed as Exhibit 10. 1 to Current Report on Form 8- K dated June 9-28 , 2622-2024 ). 10. 2
AmendmentNo—-dated-as-ofAngust 520622te-Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated as of June 3-27 , 2022
2024 . between RBC Bearings Incorporated and Br-Daniel A . Bergeron Mtehael—J—Haﬁnett—(ﬁled as Exhrbrt 10.+2 to Current
Report on Form 8-K dated August—4—June 28 %92—2—2024 ) 10. 3 4 ; dated-s

ﬁn—Feﬂﬁ—%——Iédated—Augus-t—%Q%—l-O%—F orm of Change in Control Letter Agreement for Named Executrve Ofﬂcers (filed as
Exhibit 10. 1 to Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q dated February 1, 2010). 10. 6-4 RBC Bearings Incorporated Executive Officer
Performance Based Compensation Plan (filed as Exhibit 10. 1 to Current Report on Form 8- K dated July 27, 2017). 10. +5
RBC Bearings Incorporated Amended and Restated 2013 Long Term Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10. 1 to Current Report on
Form 8- K dated August 21, 2013). 10. 86 RBC Bearings Incorporated 2017 Long- Term Equity Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit
10. 2 to Current Report on Form 8- K dated July 27, 2017). 10. 8-7 RBC Bearings Incorporated 2021 Long- Term Equity
Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10. 1 to Current Report on Form 8- K dated September 10, 2021). 10. +8-8 Credit Agreement,
dated November 1, 2021, by and among Roller Bearing Company of America, Inc. as Borrower, RBC Bearings Incorporated,
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Administrative Agent, Collateral Agent, Swingline Lender, and Letter of Credit
Issuer, and various lenders signatory thereto (filed as Exhibit 10. 1 to Current Report on Form 8- K dated November 2, 2021).
10. ++9 Guarantee, dated November 1, 2021, by and among RBC Bearings Incorporated and the subsidiary guarantors party
thereto in favor of Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Collateral Agent (filed as Exhibit 10. 2 to Current Report on
Form 8- K dated November 2, 2021). 10.42-10 Security Agreement, dated November 1, 2021, by and between Roller Bearing
Company of America, Inc., RBC Bearings Incorporated, the subsidiary grantors party thereto and Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association, as Collateral Agent for its benefit and the benefit of the Secured Parties (filed as Exhibit 10. 3 to Current Report on
Form 8- K dated November 2, 2021). 10.43-11 Pledge Agreement, dated November 1, 2021, by and between Roller Bearing
Company of America, Inc., RBC Bearings Incorporated, the subsidiary pledgors party thereto and Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association, as Collateral Agent for the beneﬁt of the Secured Parties (ﬁled as Exhrbrt 10. 4 to Current Report on Form 8-K
dated November 2, 2021) 10.12 0 : d y 2

-8-—I€dated—}u-lry—26—2~92-19—l-9—l§—l: irst Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of December 5, 2022 by and among Roller
Bearing Company of America, Inc., RBC Bearings Incorporated, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as administrative
agent, and the lenders party thereto (ﬁled as Exhibit 10. 01 to Current Report on Form 8- K dated December 7, 2022). RBC
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which is up for electlon every third year so that each d-rfeetefs—~ director e-PRBGserves a three- year term until their class

are elected awarded-stoek




aﬂd—&ppi-ﬁgrfhe—Geﬂw&ny—mayh&eﬁgﬁate-uuam artlcles emp-leyees—ffem—t-ﬂﬁe—te—t-rme—bee&use—( thetr-pesitton; responsibilities;

GF@—&nd%—certlﬁcate of 1nc0rp0rat10n requlre the vote of two- thirds of the outstanding Common Stock Subject to the
dividend rights of the holders of any outstanding Preferred Stock, the holders of shares of Common Stock are entitled to

receive ratably d1v1dends out of assets legally avallable therefor at such fPfadh&g—Geﬁrﬁeaﬁeﬂ—&ﬂd—plafrerpl&ﬂ—&meﬂ&meﬁt

dop : at-atty-tie tlmes and in such amounts as d-&ﬂ&g—t-he—b-laeke’ctt—peﬂed
beg-rﬁﬁrﬂg—eﬂ—the—last—&ay—e-ﬁRB( ’ -ﬁsea-l—qtt&rte%&nd—Board of Directors may from time to time determine. RBC does not
currently pay d1v1dends on the Common Stock quuldatlon nghts Upon the liquidation, dissolution or ending-winding

of RBC” s affairs finanetal-resultsforsuehquarter—This



PA—+P;subject to the liquidation requiren
G—RBGVHH—h&Ve—t-he—Hg-ht—rlghts at—of the holders of any outstandlng Preferred t—nﬁe-&ﬂd-m—&ny—maﬁﬂeﬁe-pﬁbhebedﬂe{ese

aftaehed—Ead&rbt&B%—S%G@Ié@PfP}GNS%wﬁexefewrg—ﬁoekStock epﬁeﬂs— the perseﬂ—mﬁst—ﬁ-l-l—eﬂ-t—t-he—RBGGpﬁeﬂ
E—xeretse—Ferm—éav&r}ab-}e—freﬂa—holders 0f shares of Common Stock are ent1tled to share ratably in RBC’ s assets that are

> 1<) &

b - for te—dlstrlbutlon after payment of all RB( s Senter
Gerper&te—Geﬁﬂsel—Genera-l-Geﬂnsel-debts and llabllltles No Other Rights The Common Stock is not convertible or €F6
redeemable, has no sinking fund rights, and is not entitled to preemptive rights to purchase, subscribe for or otherwise
acquire any unissued or treasury shares or other securities. Delaware law does not require stockholder approval for any
issuance of authorized shares . - However, the listing requirements of the New York Stock Exchange (which would
apply so long as the Common Stock is listed on the NYSE) require stockholder approval of certain issuances equal to or
exceeding 20 % of the the-then optionrexereise-will-- outstanding voting power or then- outstanding number of shares of
Common Stock. Miscellaneous Shares of Common Stock are listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “
RBC. ” The transfer agent for the Common Stock is Computershare Trust Company, N. A. PREFERRED STOCK The

Preferred Stock may bc 1ssued from time ieash%es%ére—the—epﬁerrsh&res—vﬂﬂ—be—ﬂﬁmedmte}y—se}d—lo time geﬁefate

aett tth-wi Ve RB( s-SemerGerper&te—Geﬂﬂsel-Board
of Dlrectors Geﬁefa-l—Geﬂﬂsel-wnhout further actlon by the stockholders, has the authority to determine or €FO-ofa
purchase-alter the powers, preferences, rights, quahﬁcatlons, llmltatlons and restrlctlons granted to or sa}e—lmposed on
unissued shares of Preferred Stock, and see Or-c g 5
determining-determine whether-the number of shares ma ae ; h-eertatirsee Sreg RS
eonstittite-constituting asstlfa-nee-any serles of Preferred Stock Preferred Stock terms thal the Board 0f Dlrectors could
estabhsh 1nclude otd W 3 y g
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under RBE-sequity-tneentive-plan-Exhibit 21 Subsidiaries of the Registrant * Airtomic LLC — Delaware All Power de Mexico,
S.deR. L. de C. V. — Mexico All Power Manufacturing Co. — California Climax Metal Products Company — Ohio Dodge
Industrial Australia Pty Ltd. — Australia Dodge Industrial Canada Inc. — Canada Dodge Industrial, Inc. — Delaware Dodge
Industrial India Private Limited — India Dodge Industrial (Shanghai) Company Limited — Hong Kong Dodge Mechanical Power
Transmission Mexico, S. de R. L. de C. V. — Mexico Dodge (Shanghai) Mechanical Power Transmission Ltd. — People’ s
Republic of China Industrial Tectonics Bearings Corporation — Delaware RBC Aerostructures LLC — South Carolina RBC
Aircraft Products, Inc. — Delaware RBC Bearings Polska sp. z 0. 0. — Poland RBC de Mexico, S. de R. L. de C. V. — Mexico
RBC Dodge Industrial Ltd. — England RBC France SAS — France RBC Lubron Bearing Systems, Inc. — Delaware RBC Nice
Bearings, Inc. — Delaware RBC Oklahoma, Inc. — Delaware RBC Precision Products, Inc. — Delaware RBC Southwest Products,
Inc. — Delaware RBC Specline, Inc. — Delaware RBC Turbine Components LLC — Delaware Roller Bearing Company of
America, Inc. — Delaware Sargent Aerospace and Defense LLC — Delaware Schaublin GmbH — Germany Schaublin Holding SA
— Switzerland Schaublin SA — Switzerland Sonic Industries, Inc. — California Swiss Tool Systems AG- Switzerland Vianel
Holding AG — Switzerland Western Precision Aero LLC — California * All of which are, directly or indirectly, wholly- owned
by the registrant. Exhibit 23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm We consent to the incorporation by
reference in the following Registration Statements: (1) Registration Statement (Form S- 8 No. 333- 192164) pertaining to the
RBC Bearings Incorporated 2013 Long- Term Equity Incentive Plan, (2) Registration Statement (Form S- 8 No. 333-221329)
pertaining to the RBC Bearings Incorporated 2017 Long- Term Equity Incentive Plan, (3) Registration Statement (Form S- 3

Statement-Form-S—8 No. 333- 265490) pertaining to the RBC Bearings Incorporated 2021 Long- Term Equity Incentive Plan;
of our reports dated May 4716 , 2024-2025 , with respect to the consolidated financial statements of RBC Bearings Incorporated
and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting of RBC Bearings Incorporated included in this Annual Report
(Form 10- K) of RBC Bearings Incorporated for the year ended March 36-29 , 2624-2025 . /s / Ernst & Young LLP Exhibit
31. 1 CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES- OXLEY
ACT OF 2002 I, Dr. Michael J. Hartnett, certify that: 1. I have reviewed this Report on Form 10- K of RBC Bearings
Incorporated; 2. Based on my knowledge, this Report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this Report; 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other
financial information included in this Report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations
and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this Report; 4. The registrant’ s other certifying officer
and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a- 15 (e) and 15d- 15 (e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a- 15 (f) and 15d-
15 (f)) for the registrant and have: a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including any
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this
Report is being prepared; b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles; ande-- and ¢ ) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’ s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by
this Report based on such evaluation; andd-- and d ) disclosed in this Report any change in the registrant’ s internal control over
financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’ s most recent fiscal guarter-year that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’ s internal control over financial reporting; ané5—~ and 5 . The registrant’ s
other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to
the registrant’ s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’ s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions): a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’ s ability to record, process, summarize and report
financial information; andb— and b ) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who
have a significant role in the registrant’ s internal control over financial reporting. Date: May +7-16 , 2624-2025 By: / s / Michael
J. Hartnett Michael J. Hartnett President and Chief Executive OfficerExhibit 31. 2 CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL
OFFICER I, Robert M. Sullivan, certify that: Date: May +716 , 2624-2025 By: / s / Robert M. Sullivan Robert M. Sullivan Vice
President and Chief Financial OfficerExhibit 32. 1 CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO 18
U. S. C SECTION 1350 In connection with the Annual Report of RBC Bearings Incorporated (the “ Company ”’) Form 10- K
for the year ended March 36-29 , 2624-2025 , as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the *
Report ), the undersigned, Dr. Michael J. Hartnett, the President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, pursuant to 18
U. S. C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002, hereby certifies to the best of his
knowledge that: (i) the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13 (a) or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934; and (ii) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results
of operations of the Company. Dated: May +7-16 , 2624-2025 / s / Michael J. Hartnett Michael J. Hartnett President and Chief
Executive OfficerExhibit 32. 2 CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO 18 U. S. C. SECTION
1350 In connection with the Annual Report of RBC Bearings Incorporated (the “ Company ) Form 10- K for the year ended
March 36-29 , 2824-2025 , as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “ Report ), the



undersigned, Robcrt M. Sullivan, Chief Financial Officer, of the Company, pursuant to 18 U. S. C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant
to scclion 9()6 of the Sdlbdms ()xlcv Au 0f'2002, hereby certifies to 1hc best of his 1\110\’\ lcd(m lhdl (ﬁ—t-he—Repeﬁ—fu-l—l—y

(,OllldlrlLd in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial LOHdlllOH and results 01 opcmuons of the Company.

Dated:-May1+72024-/ s / Robert M. Sulll\an Robert M. Sullivan Vice President and Chief Fmamml@fﬁeefE*hrbﬂ—S‘-’/-







